
 

AGENDA FOR 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Contact:: Chloe Ashworth 

Direct Line: 0161 253 5132 
E-mail: C.Ashworth@bury.gov.uk 
Web Site:  www.bury.gov.uk 

 
 
To: All Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Councillors : N Bayley, J Southworth, A Arif, R Bernstein, 

C Birchmore, R Gold, G Marsden, E Moss, T Pilkington, 
D Vernon and D Green 

 
 
Dear Member/Colleague 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee which will be held as follows:- 

 

Date: Wednesday, 24 July 2024 

Place:  Council Chamber, Bury Town Hall 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Briefing 

Facilities: 

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the related 

report should be contacted. 

Notes:  



AGENDA 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES   

 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are asked to consider whether 
they have an interest in any matters on the agenda and, if so, to formally declare that 
interest. 
 

3   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   
 
A period of 30 minutes has been set aside for members of the public to ask 
questions on matters considered at the last meeting and set out in the minutes or on 
the agenda for tonight’s meeting. 

 

4   MEMBER QUESTION TIME   
 
Questions are invited from Elected Members about items on the agenda. 
15 minutes will be set aside for Member Question Time, if required.  

 

5   MINUTES  (Pages 5 - 10) 

 
Minutes from the meeting held on 14th March 2024 are attached. 
 

6   CORPORATE PARENTING CHAMPION   
 

Each Committee is required to have a nominated Corporate Parenting Champion; 
they will receive training from Childrens Services and will be responsible for 
advocating for Corporate Parenting matters in each committee.  

If the representative wishes to also attend Corporate Parenting Boards scheduled for 
the municipal year 2024-2025 these are: 

 10th September 2024 

 03rd December 2024 

 09th January 2025 

 04th March 2025. 

 

 

7   YEAR END/QUARTER FOUR CORPORATE PLAN PERFORMANCE 
REPORT 2023/24 AND SUBMISSION OF THE PRODUCTIVITY PLAN  

(Pages 11 - 58) 
 
Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Transformation is attached. 

 

8   BUDGET UPDATE REPORT  (Pages 59 - 76) 

 
Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Transformation is attached. 



 

9   FORWARD PLANNER  (Pages 77 - 78) 

 
Attached for information only. 

 

10   URGENT  BUSINESS   
 
Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair agrees may 
be considered as a matter of urgency. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

1 

 

 Minutes of: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
 Date of Meeting: 14 March 2024 

 
 Present: Councillor D Vernon (in the Chair) 

Councillors R Bernstein, A Arif, N Bayley, D Green, 
T Pilkington, G Marsden, E Moss, D Berry and S Haroon 
 

 Also in attendance: Councillor J Rydeheard, Councillor Cummins, Kate 
Waterhouse, Executive Director Strategy and Transformation, 

John Holman, Director of Housing, Julie Gallagher, Democratic 
Services. 
 

 Public Attendance: 
 

No members of the public were present at the meeting. 

 Apologies for Absence: 
 

Councillor C Birchmore and Councillor M Rubinstein 
 

 
OSC.1  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest. 

 

OSC.2  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  

 
There were no public questions.  
 

 

OSC.3  MEMBER QUESTION TIME  

 
A question form Councillor Rydeheard was submitted in advance of the meeting. 
 
Responding Councillor Cummins reported that analysis has shown that Greater Manchester 
and other places in the North West have a higher proportion of dispersed accommodation 
currently being provided by SERCO and therefore we have a higher population of asylum 
seekers and refugees in Greater Manchester than in some other local authorities. 
This is in part due to more affordable accommodation in the North West and GM which is why 
we have a higher than average proportion of SERCO properties, from which asylum seekers 
and refugees are signposted to the nearest local authority for support with accommodation 
once they have received their decision on their right to remain.  
 
All GM local authorities are facing the same pressures as Bury in relation to rough sleeping 
and homelessness. Trends in common are the increase in newly refuges being asked to leave 
SERCO and Home Office accommodation and section 21s.  
 
We are currently being pro-active with in strengthening our Private Rental Sector offer, 
including accessing private rents outside of the borough (cheaper rents) and implementing 
lease and repair schemes with Landlords to try and increase available accommodation as 
quickly as possible. 

 
OSC.4  MINUTES  

 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 6th February be approved as a correct record and 
signed by the Chair. 

 

Page 5 Agenda Item 5



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 14 March 2024  

 
 

 

2 

OSC.5  HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY UPDATE  

 
Councillor Cummins, Cabinet Member for Housing attended the meeting supported by Council 
colleagues, Kate Waterhouse, Executive Director Strategy and Transformation and John 
Holman, Director of Housing to provide an update to Members on the Council’s homelessness 
strategy.   
 
An accompanying report was circulated in advance of the meeting which provided information 
in respect of: 
 

 Current pressure on the service 

 Migration 

 Themes and prevention 

 Statutory homeless response 

 Support to rough sleepers 

 Asylum dispersal, including refugee crisis (Afghan & Ukrainian). 
 Future strategy and innovation. 

 
The Cabinet Member reported that demand on Council housing services including statutory 
homelessness and rough sleeping has continued to increase since the strategy approval and 
since the Homeless Reduction Act 2017. Over the last 36 months demand for statutory 
services in Bury has increased by over 49% and expected to continue to increase further and 
the number of rough sleepers and non-statutory customers has more than doubled and 
continues to increase and is becoming more challenging to accommodate and support due to 
the increasing complexities and with the resources and suitable accommodation available. 
 
In discussions that followed the following issues and concerns were raised: 
 
In response to a Member question, the Cabinet Member reported that, different services non-
Statutory will include households or individuals not eligible for priority need accommodation or 
deemed to be intentionally homeless or not gone through the legal application for housing. 
Statutory Homeless, households or individuals who are accepted by the Council as homeless. 
These are unintentionally homeless or in priority need, families with dependent children, 
pregnant women, adults who are assessed as vulnerable. 
 
In response to a Member’s question, in regards to the issues with Homeless persons 
presenting at the Town Hall reception, Councillor Cummins reported that these are non-
statutory homeless applicants comprising of single males and one female. These people are 
visible but there are also a cohort of non-statutory homeless who are less visible.  
Whilst the Council assist in finding a resolution they have no statutory duty in these cases.  In 
several instances accommodation in the private sector, which applicants fund (not the 
Council), has been found.  The Council have given employment and housing advice as well as 
directing those to the migration officers.  Those in attendance were directed to the sit-up 
provision however the lack of housing is of serious concern. 
 
In a response to a Member’s question in respect of Section 21 notices, the Director of Housing 
reported that the service is under immense pressure and it is a National problem. The problem 
is exacerbated by no fault evictions and Legislation in respect of this matter is currently 
progressing through Parliament.   
 
Responding to a Member’s question in respect of the 1000 long term voids in the Borough; the 
Director of Housing reported that the Council has an Empty Properties Strategy.  Officers in 
the Council will approaching home owners to ask them to sell/release properties.  The Cabinet 
Member reported that four private rented properties have been purchased in the last twelve 

Page 6



 Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 14 March 2024 
 
 

 
3 

months, under this scheme.  Those that have been empty for longer than two years have been 
targeted first in addition those with those with building safety concerns would be prioritised. 
 
Members discussed the data presented in the report. Table one ‘ Open Homeless statutory 
cases each month’ showed a steady trend of increasing cases. 

 
Members discussed the long term housing growth strategy and the need to stand up more 
capacity. Members questioned internal capacity and were advised that two additional 
migration workers have been recruited along with support from the voluntary and Community 
Sector. Members were informed that there are quick wins with regards to Void properties, 
looking for new properties, being proactive and working with our Greater Manchester partners. 
 
Members held discussion with regards to building disposal. In response members were 
informed that the Business, Growth and Infrastructure Regeneration Housing Board Sub-
Group are completing work on the cost to enhance properties verses new build homes. 
 
Members discussed the time that is taken to bid for monies to support the service and the 
delay this can have on projects but were advised that there is no route around this process. 
 
Members discussed vulnerable adults including Military Veterans, and those fleeing Domestic 
Violence. In response members were informed that wrap around support is offered and this is 
included within the Allocation Policy. Members were advised that the Council does not 
automatically support  families with meals and transport when placed out of borough, but will 
review each individual family as required. 
 
Work taking place now to reduce homelessness are closer working together across 
departments; opening a housing reception and making decisions quicker. 
 
Members discussed the Care leavers strategy, the Corporate Parenting Board’s key priorities 
and Ofsted’s recommendation to have a council housing tenancy sustainment package.  
 
Members discussed the corporate risk register with regards to asylum and immigration 
matters. In order to bring down the risk, short term needs to be replaced by long term funding 
as winter pressures monies are currently closing the gap.   
 
It was agreed: 
 

1. The Homeless Strategy item should be revisited in the new municipal year at 
the earliest opportunity.  

 
OSC.6  SIX TOWN HOUSING UPDATE  

 
Councillor Cummins, Cabinet Member for Housing attended the meeting supported by Council 
colleagues, Kate Waterhouse, Executive Director Strategy and Transformation and John 
Holman, Director of Housing to provide an update to Members on the transfer of former Six 
Town Housing staff into the Council. 
 
An accompanying report circulated ahead of the meeting provided details of: 

 Consultation and feedback following transfer 

 Future options for the Company 

 Post termination arrangements 

 Future governance arrangements. 
 

Page 7



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 14 March 2024  

 
 

 

4 

Councillor Cummins reported that work has commenced to undertake the necessary TUPE 
consultation with Six Town Housing staff and plan for the organisational activity required to 
enable the transfer. Each strand of activity has been supported by a comprehensive 
programme management approach and has included a strong emphasis on communication 
and engagement with residents as well as both Six Town Housing and current Council staff.  
Alongside this work, the work programme to drive the improvement of core housing services in 
Bury has continued, led by the Interim Chief Executive of Six Town Housing.  
 
The TUPE consultation process, led by Six Town Housing, took place between 13th 
November and 13th December 2023. This process has included a range of engagement 
opportunities for staff including virtual and physical ‘drop in’ sessions. Staff briefings on key 
topics of interest, focus groups led by relevant Council managers and weekly FAQs. Trade 
Union colleagues have been engaged fully throughout this process. Alongside this, directly 
affected Council staff (those proposed to receive new responsibilities through the transfer) 
have been consulted on the potential impact for them. 
 
In discussions that followed the following issues were raised: 
 
Responding to a Members question, the Director of Housing reported that conversations with 
new staff have been very positive and they have welcomed the new approach to delivery.  Key 
areas of work include, bringing permanency to staffing teams, understanding the tenants 
voice, safety checks, dealing with complaints and improving the quality of the Councils 
correspondence with tenants. 
 
Councillor Bernstein reported that he echoed the need to bring permanency to the staffing 
arrangements and that interim appointments should be time limited. 
 
Councillor Cummins reported that the Housing Advisory Board has been established and will 
meet have its inaugural meeting on the 19th March 2024.  The Board will include Councillors, 
tenant representatives as well as independent persons. 
 
The Director of Housing reported that there are challenges facing the organisation and these 
will be addressed through a comprehensive service plan. 
 
It was agreed that: 
 
The Report be noted and oversight of the transfer will continue into the next municipal year. 
 
 

 

OSC.7  PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE SUB-GROUP HIGHLIGHT REPORT  

 
Councillor Vernon, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee updated Members of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the work of the Performance and Finance Sub-Group 
over the last Municipal year. 
 
It was agreed that: 
 
1. That, the sub-group concludes.  
2. That regular updates be provided to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the work of 
the performance and finance of the Council.  
3. That a sub-group is established in the new municipal year to look at Council housing 
governance and performance. 

 
 

Page 8



 Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 14 March 2024 
 
 

 
5 

 
 

 
COUNCILLOR D VERNON 
Chair  

 
(Note:  The meeting started at 7.00 pm and ended at 8.20 pm) 

 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

Report to: Cabinet Date: 16 July 2024 

Subject: 
Quarter Four Corporate Plan Performance Report 2023/24 and 
Productivity Plan submission 

Report of 

 
Cabinet Member, Finance and Transformation 

 
Summary 

 

1. This is the full year performance and delivery monitoring report up for the 
Corporate Plan for 2023/24. It contains updates against the delivery of the 

priorities set out in the Plan and associated key performance indicators. It 
also provides details of actions to be carried over into the Corporate Plan for 

2024/25. 
 

2. In addition, the report also contains the proposed Productivity Plan for 

submission to central government in July for Cabinet approval. In April 2024 
letters were sent to all local authorities from the Department for Levelling Up, 

Housing & Communities (DLUHC) requesting that productivity plans were 
produced as part of a central government exercise to review productivity 
across public services. The request does not provide a mandated template 

however describes a set of four themed questions around transformation and 
asks that these are considered with view of how public services are run within 

a system of place-based leadership. 
 

3. The intention is that the Plans demonstrate how productivity is monitored and 

assessed through mechanisms such as key performance indicators and 
reporting. The plan must receive member oversight and be published for 

residents to view along with future reporting and monitoring of progress. 
DLUHC have stated that the plans will be reviewed to identify common issues 
and themes but no scoring or league tables will be produced. 

 
4. Part of the response to the Productivity Plan is drawn from the Council’s 

Local Government Corporate Peer Challenge which took place in December 
2023. With regards to place base leadership the Peer Team noted in their 
final report that the Council had “really stepped-up” in its place leadership 

role. They noted that there was a clear vision for inclusive growth and 
reducing inequalities which was widely known and understood, with the 

Council seen “as a strong partner” who fosters collaboration. 
 

5. It is proposed that the current mechanism for reporting delivery activity and 

performance against the delivery objectives of the Council’s Corporate Plan 
will also monitor progress against the Productivity Plan rather than 

establishing additional reporting processes on the grounds that this would 
cause duplication. 
 

Classification: 

Open 

Decision Type: 

Non-Key 

Page 11 Agenda Item 7



Recommendation(s) 

 

6. Cabinet to note the year end update on progress against the Corporate Plan 
2023/24 and approve the submission and proposed monitoring of the 

Productivity Plan. 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s) 

 
7. This report builds on the feedback on previous Performance Report in terms 

of the transparency of delivery and performance measures. In addition, the 
Productivity Plan needs to be agreed with portfolio holders before submission 
in July 2024. 

 
Alternative options considered and rejected. 

 
8. Not applicable. 
_________________________________________________________ 

Report Author and Contact Details: 

Name: Helen Corbishley 

Position: Head of Performance and Delivery 
Department: Corporate Core 
E-mail: h.corbishley@bury.gov.uk 

________________________________________________________________ 
 
  

Page 12



Background 
 

9. This report is in two parts. The first is a summary of the proposed Productivity 
Plan for submission to the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 

Communities (DLUHC).  
 

10. The second part details year end performance and delivery against the 

priorities set out in the 2023/24 Corporate Plan. This includes a detailed 
narrative of progress and appendices of delivery against objectives and key 

performance indicators. 
 

11. At Appendix 2 is the proposed Productivity Plan for Bury. This provides a 

position statement of the organisation’s productivity and transformation over 
recent years as per the questions set out by DLUHC. It also describes that 

the reporting mechanism for the plan will be within our current processes for 
monitoring delivery and performance. 

 

Summary of Bury Council’s Productivity Plan 2024 
 

12. In 2020 the ambitious LET’S Do It! Community Strategy for Bury was 
launched, setting out a vision for the borough through to 2030: to stand out 
as a place that is achieving faster economic growth than the national 

average, with lower than national average levels of deprivation. Since 

then, both Bury Council and the wider Team Bury Partnership have worked 

together to transform their collective response to public service reform and to 
increase focus on the seven high level outcomes committed to within the 
Strategy. There is now a much stronger “golden thread” that binds the 

collective endeavour across the partnership.  
 

13. Bury is nearly three years into this decade of reform and good progress has 
been made. The contribution to LET’S by the Council are managed each year 
through a Corporate Plan which sets out the delivery required to achieve the 

seven outcomes. For the last three years a framework of the “3Rs” within the 
Corporate Plan has been used to direct activity: Response; Recovery and 

Renewal to show that LET’s Do It! did not mean “Let’s do everything”. More 
recently the priorities within the Corporate Plan have been reviewed to 
ensure that activity is focused on the right things in order to ensure 

productivity and efficiency. Those priorities are: Improving Childrens Lives, 
Sustainable Inclusive Growth and Tackling Inequalities.  

 
14. In February 2024, the latest budget statement described the wider 

challenging and uncertain national and local financial context in which Bury 

Council operates. Despite recent reductions in the rate of inflation, the 
Council is still addressing the impact of high inflation which has introduced 

circa £11m of cost pressure since 2022. In addition, this has been 
exacerbated by ongoing increases in demand across all statutory services 
including social care for adults and children, special educational needs and 

support services, social housing and homelessness duties. Collectively these 
have presented a 17% demand increase on the Council’s budget against an 

income increase of 7%.  

Page 13



 

15. For Bury, these pressures come on top of systemic underfunding as 
demonstrated by the 2023 study by the Institute of Fiscal Studies which 

highlighted Bury Council’s position in the bottom 20% worst funded councils. 
Real term core spending power has been reduced by 29% since 2010/11. 
 

16. The diagrams below show the change in Core Spending Power for Bury 
since 2015-16 and the increasing reliance on Council Tax income streams. 

They also show the percentage increase in demand across a range of 
Council’s services that have been delivered during this period of reduced 
funding. This includes the impact of increasing population, particularly older 

people which increases demand on our range of services for adults over 65. 
 

 

17. In terms of the stability of the workforce, the overall size of the Council has 

remained relatively stable with a 23 FTE increase between April 2022 and April 
2024. However, it is important to note that this masks a notable change in the 
shape of the workforce with a 92 FTE increase in workforce across the social 

care departments, a 34 FTE decrease in Operations and a 74 FTE decrease 
within corporate functions. Sickness absence, whilst reduced over the past 

year remains above the sector average which has also put pressure on 
delivery. 
 

18. In 2021/22 the Transformation Programme was established to deliver 
improved ways of working to facilitate the delivery of savings to support the 

Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. The Transformation Programme 
was delivered through three programmes of work: LET’S Do It! … Once, Well 
and Flexibly and in parallel a new digital strategy was developed to enable 

further transformation and efficiency.  
 

19. Alongside this Transformation Programme the Council has demonstrated 
commitment to continuous improvement across the organisation. This has 
been in the form of rounds of service reviews, departmental restructures and 

improvement support through LGA peer reviews.  
 

20. The Council’s Corporate Peer Challenge was undertaken in December 2023 
and recognised the work undertaken to continue the transformation of the 
Council and realise efficiencies over recent years. It proposed that Bury build 

on this by: 
 

Measure First Date Period Last Date Period % Demand Increase

2014 2023

310 350

2015 2023

2622 3239

2015/16 2023/24

1879 2375

2014 2023

174 690

2014 2023

1213 2241

2014 2023

340 461

2021 2023

2853 3532

2021 2022

10878 13348

2015 2022

33,413 35,758

2017/18 2023/24

4175 5220

36%

24%

23%

7%

25%

13%

24%

26%

297%

85%
Numbers of 2 year funded children

Waste collection (tonnes) from street cleaning

Population aged 65+

Funded Children - 30 Hours childcare

Number of potholes repaired

Number of Looked After Children

Referrals to Childrens Social Services

Housing Waiting List

Requests for EHCPs

Total EHCPs or Statements

Page 14



 Establishing a corporate transformation plan, approach, resource and 
culture to support delivery of the MTFP. 

 Further developing Finance, HR and IT as key services in enabling the 
delivery of the Council’s ongoing transformation needs.  

 
21. In the context of the need to deliver £30m in savings over the coming three 

years (as set out in the MTFP agreed in February 2024) the Council is 

progressing an ambitious plan of transformation to drive financial savings in 
tandem with creating the conditions and culture to deliver on the LET’S Do It! 

vision for Bury.  
 

22. Bury Council’s STAR Chamber reviews all the spend and sets budget for the 

financial years, agreeing the growth requirements and budget assumptions 
for the MTFP. This is a line-by-line review on all expenditure and staff 

establishments to assure all public money is not wasted and the Council is 
delivering a standard of service in relation to the resources available.  
 

23. The Council has invested time and resource in understanding demand and 
savings proposals relate to opportunities for transformation in high spend 

areas such as social care for children and adults. In addition, the Senior 
Leadership Team are prioritising other activity such as estates rationalisation, 
investing in more energy efficient operations and ensuring income is 

maximised (where appropriate) from fees, charges and other external 
sources.  

 
24. In terms of engaging capacity through agency or consultancy activity across 

the Council this is subject to a robust internal approval process and, to 

ensure transparency and be clear on outcomes, information is shared with 
both Members and the Councils Trade Unions through the Corporate Joint 

Consultative Committee (JCC).  
 

25. The Council engages the overwhelming majority of agency staff through a 

managed service provider contract which is a joint arrangement across 
Greater Manchester. This arrangement supports significant efficiencies 

through economies of scale across the Conurbation and, given the scale, 
dedicated contract management support is in place to ensure the quality of 
service and address any issues.  

 
26. The Senior Leadership Group has been strengthened as the place where the 

Executive and their direct reports meet on a monthly basis to discuss key 
issues and monitor the delivery of the Corporate Plan through a rotating 
agenda which focuses on Workforce, Budget, Performance. This is also 

where shared “wicked issues” are discussed and owned.  
 

27. Beneath this is a much larger Senior Management Forum consisting of staff 
who report directly into SLG. This group meets regularly and has been used 
as a key information sharing group, but also as an opportunity to deliver 

consistent messaging and training around corporate activities such as the 
new Procurement Regulations, the importance of Risk Management and key 

Page 15



leadership themes such as inclusion, health and safety and corporate 
parenting.  

 
28. The Corporate Plan and LET’S monitoring mechanisms show that despite the 

challenging financial environment that delivery and productivity continue 
despite increasing demand and reducing funding. The suite of KPIs within the 

Corporate Plan reporting process continue to demonstrate the delivery of key 
activities. Reports are taken to Cabinet on a quarterly basis which both 

provide analysis of delivery of key milestones set out in the plan at the 
beginning of the year and the performance of associated KPIs. 

 
29. The Corporate plan monitoring and reporting reflects on a suite of KPIs, 

including those that represent the rates at which work is completed efficiently 

or to the standard expected. This process not only provides assurance about 
the delivery of our corporate plan but also reporting on business as usual 

departmental delivery. This is where most of the productivity monitoring will 
be found. 

 

30. Delivery against the Corporate Plan is monitored through monthly reporting 
by Executive Directors to their Cabinet Member and Chief Executive. Formal 

reports are presented on a quarterly basis to Cabinet with additional analysis 
via the Performance and Finance Sub-Group of our Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. To avoid any additional burden that may impact on our 

productivity, this mechanism will be used to publicly monitor our productivity 

as per the requirements set down by the Department for Levelling Up, 
Housing and Community.  

 

Delivery of the Corporate Plan 2023/24 
 

31. The Corporate Plan for 2023/24 set out nine priorities, with three key 
objectives to reflect the ambition of the organisation and acknowledgement of 

the targeted work required to continue to deliver the Council’s contribution to 
the LET’s vision. 

 
32. Throughout the year, quarterly reports have been provided to Cabinet to 

monitor progress across the Corporate Plan priorities and a wider set of Key 
Performance Indicators designed to provide transparency and accountability 
across the full range of Council functions.  

 
33. At year end it is clear a significant amount of work has been undertaken to 

achieve the targets set out in the plan. In addition, there were periods of high 
demand, unplanned activities and other priorities which had an impact on the 
delivery of the whole of the Corporate Plan for 2023/24.  

 
34. In summary, out of the 15 deliverables set out against the nine priorities, 

eight are complete, a further six over 80% complete and one deliverable has 
not been delivered. 
 

35. Where the deliverables are not 100% complete, this work will be included in 
the Corporate Plan 2024/25. These include the People Strategy and 

Page 16



Workforce Representation Strategy; a Children’s Edge of Care Service; an 
All-Age Skills strategy and the Social Value strategy. 

 
36. The report below is a summary per priority of the delivery and activity 

throughout the year and impact that this has had. 
 
Progress against the Top Three Priorities: 

 
Improving Children’s Lives 

 

37. This priority is comprised of three elements: Children’s Social Care, 
Educational Improvement and Special Educational Needs with deliverables 

associated with improvement and transformation across all three due to the 
current interventions from both Ofsted and the Department for Education. 

 
38. With regards to the children who are in the Council’s care, activity for the year 

has focused on delivery the Children’s Improvement Plan with actions 

including increasing the recruitment of social workers, changing the model of 
social care to the more holistic Family Safeguarding process and further 

developing the Borough‘s Early Years and Early Help offer whilst ensuring 
that the Council meets the requirements of Ofsted for return review visits.  

 

39. In terms of Educational Improvement, work on the new Radcliffe High School 
has commenced and the relocation of the Pupil Referral Unit to a more 

appropriate site with minimal disruption to pupils has also been completed. 
 

40. With regards to Special Educational Needs, activity has been focused on 

service improvement, preparation for the new Ofsted SEND inspection 
framework and the delivery of Project Safety Valve in conjunction with the 

Department for Education. Most of the workstreams within Project Safety 
Valve were delivered throughout the year, with some delays to the Local 
Offer and review of under 5’s with SEND. However, by the end of the year 

this had caught up along with the build commencement of the first new 
special school in Unsworth and the opening of resource provision places 

throughout the year to support the projected demand in the Council’s DSG 
Management Plan. Any undelivered activities are being targeted through the 
PSV Delivery Board for imminent completion in Quarter One of the Corporate 

Plan 2024/25.  
 

41. It is important to note that this update was written before the SEND 
Inspection and therefore at the time of this report the focus was on dealing 
with increased demand and working through the SEND Transformation Plan. 

 
42. More detail on activities delivered in the year to support this priority are as 

follows: 
 

 The “Mockingbird” model of foster care support and the Family Safeguarding 

model of children’s social work practice were both launched. Bury is the first 
OFSTED-rated inadequate authority to roll out either of these initiatives.   

Page 17



 The East Bury Family Hub was successfully opened in September 2023 to 
provide all-age prevention support to families in this neighbourhood.  

 Brookhaven special school was opened in January 2024; an important  step in 
increasing sufficiency for children with special needs within the borough.  

 Videos created to promote help for people with a learning disability to improve 
their mental wellbeing, and to share ideas with carers and support workers 

about how they can improve someone’s mental wellbeing. 

 Seven young people, who have experienced being in care or looked after, 

were involved in a careers development seminar by the Council’s Joint Venture 
Partner Muse Places. There has also been a focus on ensuring that care 
leavers are matched to employment opportunities in the Council, for example in 

our Operations Department. 

 The DSG Management Plan for Project Safety Valve (PSV) was successfully 

submitted to the Department for Education and associated funding approved. 
 
43. The Key Performance Indicators within this priority reflect the described 

above. In terms of improving the standard of schools and education in 
2023/24, the increase in the percentage of good or better schools (Primary 

and Secondary) in Bury has slowly risen throughout the year from 71.2% to 
78.8%. To break this down by primary and secondary, in March 2024 92.6% 
of Bury’s Primary schools were rated good or better, as were 59.2% of Bury 

High schools. This compared to 91.3% and 42.2% last year. This is a good 
outcome for Bury in terms of the direction of travel but when compared to ten 

statistical neighbours, Bury falls within the bottom two which indicates the 
further work required in this area.  
 

44. As at 1 March 2024 the number of children in Bury schools with an 
Education, Health and Care Plan, (EHCP) had risen over the year from 2441 

to 2736. However, the number of new EHCP’s issued at that point was nearly 
20 less than the year before (67 compared to 84). This indicates 
improvement and rigour in the application processes and potentially the grass 

roots of improved SEN support services providing support for children and 
young people’s needs before the requirement for an EHCP emerges. At the 

same time 100% of EHCPs for Bury children were completed on time within 
the 20-week compliance timescale. This performance is also a reflection of 
improved processes within the SEN Team, where the number of EHCPs 

issued is increasing but are now all being completed within timescale. 
 

45. In March 2024, 286 Bury children were electively home educated, this has 
increased throughout 2023/24 and reflects a seasonal pattern through the 
academic year. Compared to March 2023 there has been an annual increase 

of 46 in this academic year. 
 

46. In the last 6 months of the year there were 1582 Bury Children in Need. 
Nearly a quarter of these are looked after children and 14% had a child 
protection plan, above England rates but in line with statistical neighbours. 

There were 1251 referrals to CSC in the last 6 months of the year, of which 
24% were a re-referral. The latest benchmarking data shows that Bury’s 

referrals rates are higher than statistical neighbours and England. 
 

Page 18



47. The impact of the pandemic has exposed and increased inequalities locally 
particularly between those residents living in the most and least deprived 

areas. The gap in children reaching a Good Level of Development between 
those in receipt of Free School Meals and children overall increased to 17.2% 

in 2023 from 11.6% in 2019.  
 

48. At GCSE level where the gap between children in receipt of Free School 

Meal and overall children in Bury in terms of GCSE attainment has also 
widened. The average attainment 8 score for FSM pupils was 35.1% 

compared to 44.8% overall. In 2022 these figures were 37.8% and 46.3% 
respectively showing a decline for both cohorts.  

 

49. There are also inequalities in outcomes experienced by those children who 
have been cared for by the Council. Overall whilst 96% of 16-17 year olds are 

in Education, Employment, or Training (EET) this falls to 62% of 17-18 year 
olds care leavers, and 46 % of 19-21 year olds care leavers. Whilst this is an 
improvement on the same point last year (54% and 42% respectively) it 

demonstrates the further improvement journey required as this is still lower 
than the last available benchmark for England as whole 

 
50. In terms of the longer-term work to address these issues, the percentage of 

children accessing 2-year-old free childcare was 81.5% in the Spring Term 

2024. This is a positive increase from 68.5% in the Spring Term 2023 and 
demonstrates the impact from promotion of this service. Building on this, and 

other work to improve Early Years services is therefore a priority within the 
Corporate Plan 2024/25. 

 

Achieving Inclusive Economic Growth 
 

51. This priority focuses on the delivery of the “levelling-up” sites within the 
borough, the Town Centre Plans and the launch of the Economic 
Development Strategy and accelerated growth plans. 

 
52. As with many capital and development projects there can be slippage 

between quarters, which is evidenced in the delivery table below however by 
the end of the year the deliverable was 100% complete. March 2024 also 
saw the approval of the regeneration framework for the Millgate Shopping 

centre and surrounding areas. 
 

53. The Economic Development Strategy for Bury was published at the 
beginning of 2024 and set out a ten-year framework to guide a collaborative 
approach to delivering a sustainable, competitive, inclusive and resilient local 

economy. An action plan framework is currently being set up to monitor 
delivery of the strategy specifically and contributions from organisations 

across the Bury partnership. 
 

54. In addition, the following activities have taken place to support this priority: 

 

 The local housing pipeline is on track and developers have started on  site for 

the construction of 600 new homes in Radcliffe.   

Page 19



 In March 2024 the Council adopted the Places for Everyone plan following an 
extensive consultation process.  

 First Bury Regeneration Expo welcomed business leaders, investors  and 
stakeholders in Ramsbottom to discuss how Bury will be  transformed over the 

next decade and beyond. Organised by the  council, in partnership with the 
Greater Manchester Business Growth Hub, the event showcased the many 

game-changing developments coming to the borough 

 All enabling works for the Radcliffe and Bury Flexi Hall Levelling Up schemes 
were completed and construction began in Radcliffe.  

 In February 2024, Bury Council completed the in-sourcing of the Housing 
Services, bring over 7,000 homes back under the direct management of the 

Local Authority. Work has continued at pace to improve the standard of 
accommodation and ensure tenant safety within the context of the new Social 
Housing Regulations, introduced on the 1st April 2024.  

 

55. Despite this delivery activity the key performance indicators reflect the 

challenging economic climate across the borough. The last twelve months 
has seen a reduction in the number of business enterprises in 2023 (7830 
compared to 8060 in 2022). The number of local business units also declined 

from 9055 to 8790. In addition, a measure of job density (where 1.0 would 
equal one job for every working aged resident), was 0.65 in 2022, decreasing 

from 0.70 in 2021 which reflects the availability of employment in the 
borough. Addressing these issues is priorities with the Action Plan for the 
Economic Development Strategy. 

 
56. To support local communities with digital reforms, recruitment of a new Digital 

Inclusion and Engagement Officer took place in February 2024. The role will 
aim to work on bringing together digital inclusion strategy in Bury and 
creating a platform for community groups, local businesses and residents to 

access and signpost to digital support and upskilling resources. 
 

Supporting residents and business with the cost-of-living crisis 
 

57. There were two main deliverables associated with this priority: delivering the 

Anti-Poverty Strategy Action Plan and launching the Social Value Strategy. 
Throughout the year the Social Value Strategy did not meet quarterly 

deadlines in terms of delivery. This has now been made a priority for delivery 
by Q2 of the 2024/25 Corporate Plan. 
 

58. The Bury Cost of Living and Anti-Poverty Strategy was approved in 2022 with 
a series of annual action plans following the strategy which monitor delivery. 

The action plan for 2023/24 contained a range of deliverables including 
campaigns promoting cost of living support, promoting digital wellbeing, 
increasing energy efficiency and literacy and community wealth building and 

financial inclusion. The action plan was delivered as planned in 2023/24 
which provided residents with year-round support including access to 

services, tips on how to save money and energy, providing free wifi and data 
for those in “data poverty” and promoting Credit Unions and basic bank 
accounts. 

 

Page 20



59. In addition to the above, the following activities were also delivered: 
 

 Around 7000 residents were provided with food and fuel support through the 
cost-of-living strategy.  

 The provision of energy efficient measures to homes in Bury under the  Energy 
Company Obligation (ECO) phase funding has delivered  measures to 91 

properties which is saving each household an average of £567 per year and 
saving an estimated 372.5 tonnes of carbon in addition. 

 Three drop-in events were hosted during February and March for residents 

 to receive advice on cost of living including debt, benefits, energy saving, 
managing money, budgeting and housing or tenancy issues. 

 400 vulnerable residents received a winter pack to help keep warm. 

 Bury Adult Learning has a Learner Support Fund which helps learners  on 

qualification courses experiencing financial hardship to stay in education. The 
fund can be used to help with course costs, exam fees, childcare costs and 
travel costs. 

 Bury Neighbour Hub is a collaborative project between Bury Works, Bury 
Council and Ingeus, an employment services provider working with residents 

and employers to help create lasting employment. 
 

60. The key performance indicators in this area further triangulate the successful 

delivery against this priority. The time taken to process new benefit claims for 
residents such as Housing Benefit and Council Tax benefit, has decreased 

from 35 days at the start of the year, to 32 days by the end of year. This 
ensures that residents who are in need and eligible for financial support are 
receiving what the need in a timely way. Benchmarking data from 2022/23 

shows that there is a need to improve the timeliness for Housing Benefit 
claims in particular to support residents where out of Bury’s statistical 

neighbours, this Council is the third longest for processing new claims. This 
forms part of the Council’s Corporate Plan for 2024/25. 
 

61. As at March 2024 there were 5335 people in Bury claiming a work-related 
benefit, mainly Universal Credit. This was an increase from 4,800 in 

September 2023. Increases in claimant count can show two things, both that 
residents are requiring benefit support due to employment and income 
changes but also shows that when residents are needing support there are 

being directed to services that can support claiming of benefits to ensure that 
they are receiving what they need. 

 
62. In terms of accommodation stability for residents, the key performance 

indicators show that there was a peak of open statutory homelessness cases 

throughout the year and the year-end position of 745 cases is 21 cases high 
than the starting point. There has also been a steady increase in the number 

of households in temporary accommodation from 111 at the start of the year 
to 160 at the end which has been accompanied by a decrease in the 
percentage of “move ons” from homelessness/threat of homelessness from 

49% at the beginning of the year to 35% at the end. This reflects an increase 
in demand and the complexity of cases being support by the Council but also 

the impact of the lack of suitable accommodation within the borough. 
 

Page 21



  

Page 22



Remaining Organisational Priorities: 
 

Improving the Health and Care System 
 

63. There has been strong delivery against this priority in 2023/24, with all 
projected deliverables complete at the end of the year. Focused on two key 
workstreams: Intermediate Care Transformation and Care Quality 

Commission inspection readiness, achievements include the establishment of 
the new Assistive Technology team and the delivery of the Staying Well 

Team with the Bury GP Federation. With regards to the new regulatory 
framework for Adult Social Care, overseen by the Care Quality Commission, 
a peer challenge improvement plan has been completed alongside a self-

assessment to support CQC regulator readiness.  
 

64. Below is a summary analysis of some of the 2023/24 health and care 
performance data collected through the Corporate Plan. In addition, quarterly 
cabinet Adult Social Care performance report contains further performance 

information in detail. 
 

65. The proportion of adult social care providers rated good or outstanding by 
CQC has remained consistent over the year with the latest position of 84%. 
This is above the England average of 79%. 88.6% of the borough’s care 

home agencies also continue to be rated Good or Better. 
 

66. In terms of Adult Social Care, Quarter Three is usually peak activity due to 
the winter season and this was reflected in 23/24. Intermediate Care Services 
were particularly busy in December and evidences the support provided to 

the hospital system once winter arrived. 
 

67. Waiting lists for Adult Social care whilst beginning to fall can be erratic, this is 
due to the high volumes of work coming into the department which can result 
in small backlogs escalating quickly. Throughout the year government grants 

have been utilised to invest in extra staff to reduce these waiting lists further. 
It is expected to see an impact from this in the next two quarters. 

 
68. At Quarter Four there is a drop in the increase of the number of adult social 

care package outstanding reviews, due to the work undertaken by the 

reviewing team. Further improvements are expected over the next two 
quarters.  

 
Reducing Health Inequalities 
 

69. This priority seeks to deliver interventions that will help improve the overall 
quality of life measure in LET’s by reducing inequalities and tackling the key 

causes of mortality such as Cardiovascular Disease (CVD), cancer and liver 
disease. This priority also includes the early intervention and prevention 
activity that can help improve the good level of development in the borough’s 

youngest children and in addition the inequalities that can also be 
experienced.  
 

Page 23



70. Delivery against this priority during the year has included the production of 
the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Bury, the first draft of the licensing 

matrix to help support decision making around licence applications, the 
review of the substance misuse service, launch of self-care communications 

and a plan developed with the GP Fed for delivery of secondary prevention 
care for CVD. 
 

71. In addition through the Health and Wellbeing Board a new outcomes 
framework has been developed which is focussed on inequalities. 

 
Tackling Climate Change 
 

72. Within this priority are commitments to decarbonisation and household 
energy efficiency across the borough, this also includes the launch of the 

Council's internal climate change action plan. Key activity to support 
decarbonisation includes the replacement of street lighting columns and 
lamps to with new LED versions. This workstream was on track at the start of 

the year but due to procurement issues the completion of this work has been 
delayed until 2024/25. However, within the same period electric vehicle 

charging points have been increased by 66%, 98% of council vehicles have 
now been changed to lower emission versions and Wave 2 of the Social 
Housing Decarbonisation programme has been delivered to 159 properties 

out of 201 properties.  
 

73. The local Corporate Plan Key performance data has highlighted a slight 
downward trajectory of the percentage of waste recycled from 55% to 49.3%. 
The latest benchmarking data shows for 2022/23 the percentage was 52.6%, 

the second highest out of the Council's CIPFA nearest neighbours. The 
average residual waste (ie non-recyclable) was 342.5kg per household which 

was well under the Council’s CIPFA neighbours average of 479.3kg.  
 

Public Sector Reform 

 

74. This priority was mostly delivered in 2023/24 and continued to build on the 

good work already developed through the Council’s Neighbourhoods Model. 
The two focuses here are “Embedding Public Sectors Leadership Teams in 
each neighbourhood” and “Taking a Person and Community Centred 

Approach to Public Sector reform”.  
 

75. For the former, the live digital neighbourhood profiles were launched in the 
summer of 2023 and are published for use by partners and residents. A 
series of successful Team Bury events have taken place and the State of the 

Borough was shared with partners in September 2023 detailing the 
contributions of Team Bury against the seven outcomes in LET’S. People 

and Community Plans have been developed further in each neighbourhood 
including local intelligence and risk stratification workshops which have 
resulted in a new monitoring framework for cohorts in each area. 

 
76. For the latter, strength-based working in neighbourhoods has been mapped 

out alongside the delivery of the Wellness strategy. The family hub in East 

Page 24



Bury was opened successfully and a review of Family Hub functions has 
taken place, with new proposals being discussed regarding location and 

services required – further milestones for delivery will be set out in the 
2024/25 Corporate Plan. 

 
Delivering Sustainable Housing Growth 
 

77. The main focus of the priority in the past year was completing the options 
appraisal regarding the future of the Council’s social housing landlord. Six 

Town Housing transferred back into the Council in February 2024 to join the 
other housing functions. 
 

78. During that time new workstreams have been developed both an internal 
improvement plan to ensure that the best services are provided to residents 

and tenants now that it is being provided from the Council and also regulator 
readiness activity in anticipation of the new housing inspection regime that is 
likely to happen over the next 1-2 years. There was a successful lift and shift 

of housing landlord services to ensure minimal disruption to tenants and 
restructuring work underway to align teams and processes going forward. 

 
79. A start on site was made as planned for house units throughout the year. 

Alongside this, the Places for Everyone plan was adopted locally as well as in 

8 other Greater Manchester authorities – which aims to manage land 
development up until 2037, plan new homes, employment space and 

infrastructure, cater for growing populations, boost the prosperity of the area 
and ensure housing and employment opportunities are spread evenly across 
Greater Manchester. 

 
80. In terms of performance, the latest indicators tell us that at March 2024 there 

were 160 households in temporary accommodation (with the longest stay 
currently over 570 days) 
 

81. There has been a steady increase of rough sleepers being supported through 
the ABEN programme in the last two quarters of the year. This is 

accompanied by an increase in statutory homelessness cases – there were 
745 cases at Quarter 4, compared to less than 500 in 2020/21. There was 
also a total of 2375 individuals or families on the Housing Waiting List at the 

end of 2023/24. This shows increasing demand for housing needs by 
residents and is unlikely that this demand is going to change in the short 

term. The Corporate Plan for 2024/25 continues to monitor housing and 
accommodation developments for residents and it is intended that bringing 
housing services back into the organisation that this can be delivered in the 

best way for tenants. 
 

82. Growth is continuously within the borough in particular around planning. In 
2023/24 there were 788 planning applications received by the Business 
Growth and Infrastructure Department with 87% of these being granted. 

 
83. At the start of the period there were 210 housing units completed, 80 of which 

were affordable. The Council is also continuing to plan the delivery of 

Page 25



supported housing to meet the needs of vulnerable, neurodiverse adults and 
those adults who have a learning disability. 

 
Celebrating culture and supporting Bury’s creative sector 

 

84. The final Corporate Plan priority had the following deliverables: launch and 
implement the new Cultural Strategy, delivery of savings in Bury Art Museum, 

develop a programme of cultural events and monitoring the UKSPF (Shared 
Prosperity Fund) for opportunities to develop the borough’s vision and 

priorities further. 
 
85. In the last year Bury Art Museum was awarded £590,000 to carry out 

essential building works to help protect art works, repair the roof and open 
some of the currently closed gallery spaces. The funding from the 

government’s Cultural Investment Fund will ensure short term sustainability 
whilst further local plans are developed for the long term vision of the Art 
Museum. 

 
  

Page 26



Corporate Plan 2023/24 Delivery Table 

 

 
86. A summary of overall progress against these Corporate Priorities at Year End 

is provided below. This includes a backwards look on the quarterly RAG 
ratings throughout the year and then a year end status on completion. 

 

87. The following RAG ratings apply for the planned activities within the quarter 
against that deliverable: 

 

 RED: On hold or potentially being re-evaluated against priorities 

 AMBER: Behind but manageable within current plan/requirements 

 GREEN: On track against original timescales 

 BLUE: Complete 

 
88. The following colours indicate if the deliverable for the year has been 

completed. Where it hasn’t been completed a % is provided to give an idea of 
distance from completion. There is also accompanying narrative for where a 
deliverable isn’t complete and a proposed timescale for the 2024/25 

Corporate Plan. 
 

 PURPLE: Objective is complete and delivered within the 2023/24 Corporate 
Plan. 

 GREY: Not delivered within the 2023/24 Corporate Plan 
 
Key Performance Indicators 

 
89. In addition to monitoring delivery against Corporate Plan priorities, each 

Department has developed a core set of key performance indicators which 
are used to track changes in demand, delivery against customer standards and 

performance against agreed benchmarks. 
 

90. These indicators cover a range of business as usual (BAU) activities as well 
as project specific measures where appropriate and are monitored within 

internal departmental processes. 
 

91. The latest snapshot position of all of these indicators is in Appendix 1. Due to 

timing of data collection and publication there may not be a full year position 
of the key performance indicator. 

 
 

Page 27



Progress against Corporate Plan Priorities 

 
Priority Key Deliverables Apr-Jun 23 and Jul-Sep 23 Oct – Dec 23 Jan – Mar 24 % Objective 

Completion 

Year End Status 

Top Three Corporate 
Priorities for 2023/24 

→→→     RESPONSE        →→→       RECOVERY       →→→        RENEWAL     →→→ 

1. Supporting 
residents and 
businesses with 
the cost-of-
living crisis 

Deliver 2023/24 
Action Plan within 
the Anti-Poverty 
Strategy 

• Household support round 3 
• Cost of Living Summit 3 

• Winter 
support 
programme 
delivered 

• Evaluation of Impact 

100% COMPLETE 

Launch Social Value 
Policy / Community 
Wealth 

• Mapping of existing commitment 
via contract register and 
procurement analysis 

• Framework of opportunity signed 
off via neighbourhood teams 

• Social Value 
Policy launched 

• Evaluation 
framework agreed 
and implemented 25% 

Priority action in 
24/25 Corporate Plan 

to be completed by 
Q1 

2. Improving 
Children’s 
Lives 

 

Childrens Social Care 
Ensuring services for 
children and young 
people meet the 
required standards 
for good levels of 
safeguarding and 
support 

-Family Safeguarding model 
implemented 
-Early Years offer resolved 
-Exit of Managed Service Team 

-23 international social 
work arrivals 
 -Implement training for 
EH practitioners.  
-Student Social Worker 
intake  

Preparation for Ofsted re-
inspection by ensuring 
services are recognised as 
improving outcomes for 
children and young 
people 

 

100% COMPLETE 

Educational 
Improvement 
Radcliffe School build 
commences 
Improve the 
proportion of schools 
good or better  
Academisation 
Strategy 
Improved attendance 

• Develop school improvement and 
school cluster model with seconded 
headteacher 

• Develop training and 
communication for schools and 
governors following DfE local area 
commissioning statement 

• DfE procurement school build 
• Revise quality assurance proforma 

and mechanism 
• Analyse schools attainment data 

and RAG rate 

Radcliffe leisure centre 
relocated to enable 
new schools build 
phase to commence  
Quality assurance visits 
to schools  

• Radcliffe School build 
begins 

• PRU relocates to 
Spurr House 
 

100% COMPLETE 

Special Education 
Needs 
Preparing for the new 
review of services by 
Ofsted through 
service 
transformation 

• SEND Improvement plan updated 
• Graduated approach launched 
• Revised PSV Management plan 

submitted 
• Revised Local Offer in place 
• Under 5s plans reviewed  
• Circa 50 RP places open 

• Options paper for 
14-25 SEND service 
to be completed  

• Recommissioning 
of short break offer  

• Unsworth Special 
School open 

• Circa 10 RP places 
open 90% 

Short Breaks contracts have 
been extended to ensure no 

break in service. 
Recommissioning of the 

Short Break offer will take 
place Q1 2024-25. 

P
age 28



Priority Key Deliverables Apr-Jun 23 and Jul-Sep 23 Oct – Dec 23 Jan – Mar 24 % Objective 
Completion 

Year End Status 

Project Safety Valve 
Plan Updated and 
Approved by 
Department for 
Education 

3. Achieving 
Inclusive 
Economic 
Growth 

Levelling-Up Sites 
commence 
construction 
Township Plans for 
Whitefield, Prestwich 
and Ramsbottom 
Economic 
Development 
Strategy 
Updated Accelerated 
Growth Programme 
Skills Strategy 

• Planning secured – Radcliffe and 
Bury sites 

• High St taskforce to Whitefield 
• Prestwich consultation 
• OBC – Ramsbottom Enterprise 

Centre 
• Radcliffe Pocket park 
•  EDS Launch 
• Radcliffe demolition 
• Market Operator engaged 
• Whitefield Town plan 
• Ramsbottom public realm planning 
• Millgate masterplan 
• Skills Strategy launched 

Radcliffe hub 
construction begins 
Prestwich funding 
strategy 
Planning – Radcliffe 
enterprise centre 
Inclusive growth 
strategy launched 

• Bury flexi 
construction begins 

100% 

 

COMPLETE 

Other Organisational 
Priorities for 2023/24 

→→→     RESPONSE        →→→       RECOVERY       →→→        RENEWAL     →→→ 

4. Improving the 
Health & Care 
System 

Intermediate Care 
Transformation Plan 
 

• Training Needs Analysis completed 
• Provider and service user physical 

disabilities network established 
• Assistive Tech team established and 

operational 
• Implement new Housing Assistance 

Policy 
• Deliver contract between Council 

and GP Fed for payment of Staying 
Well service 

• Stand alone bed base and Home 
base service created by merging 
IMC@Home with Reablement 

• Assistive Tech Delivery 

• Assistive Tech 
delivery 

• Review intermediate 
tier and assess 
requirements 

100% COMPLETE 

Care Quality 
Commission 
Inspection Readiness 

• Peer Challenge improvement plan 
prepared 

• Updated self assessment completed 
• ASC Performance Framework 

designed and implemented 
• “Getting the Call” readiness plan 

• Potential 
assessment 
window 

• Potential assessment 
window 

100% COMPLETE 

P
age 29



Priority Key Deliverables Apr-Jun 23 and Jul-Sep 23 Oct – Dec 23 Jan – Mar 24 % Objective 
Completion 

Year End Status 

5. Reducing Health 
Inequalities 

Reducing the life 
expectancy gap by 
focusing on 
preventing and 
reducing the impact 
of the 3 key 
contributors CVD, 
Cancer and Liver 
Disease.  
Narrowing the school 
readiness gap 
 

• GP Fed Plan for the delivery of the 
secondary prevention CVD work in 
General Practice 

• Refine the new wellness model of 
delivery to focus work on key 
priorities 

• Complete first version of the JSNA 
• Update Local smoking plan 
• Develop and roll out alcohol 

licensing matrix to support licensing 
decisions prevention CVD work in 
General Practice 

• Review self-care 
information and 
Tools on the Bury 
Directory and 
refine as 
appropriate  

• Support the roll out 
of self-care comms 
through VCSE 
sector  

• Review impact of 
additional substance 
misuse service 
investment  

100% COMPLETE 

6. Tackling Climate 
Change 

Deliver commitments 
to decarbonisation 
and household 
energy efficiency 
across the borough 
Launch internal 
climate change action 
plan 
 

• Phase 2 – replace 252 street lighting 
columns and LEDs 

• Phase 3 – carry out design 
work/tenders for LED replacement 

• Phase 2 – replace a further 252 
street lighting columns and LEDs 

• Phase 3 – Upgrade 300 streetlights 
with LEDs 

• Delivery of the remaining 13 
electric vans to the Council fleet 

• Phase 2 - Replace a 
further 252 street 
lighting columns 
and LEDs  

• Phase 3 - Upgrade 
a further 510 
streetlights with 
LEDs 

• Phase 2 - Replace a 
further 252 street 
lighting columns and 
LEDs  

• Phase 3 - Upgrade a 
further 510 
streetlights with LEDs 

• Increase public EV 
charging 
infrastructure by 
100% 

• Implement Social 
Housing 
Decarbonisation 
(Wave 2) 

• Deliver energy 
efficient measures to 
80 households in 
Bury 

75% 

Procurement was delayed 
during 23/24 for the 
supplier of the LED 

replacement. The project 
will be rolled over into 
24/25 Corporate Plan. 

EV charging infrastructure 
increased by 66% (18) 

Delivered Wave 2 social 
housing decarbonisation 

Delivered energy efficient 
measures to 91 properties 

in Bury  

  
  
  
 
 

7. Public Sector 

Reform 

Embedding Public 

Sectors Leadership 
Teams in each 
neighbourhood 
 

• Updated neighbourhood profiles 

and SoTB 
• Map models of risk stratification 

already in place – consistent and 
neighbourhood specific 

• People and community plans 

• Review operation 

of neighbourhood 
teams  

• Assess next steps for 

integration 

100% COMPLETE 

P
age 30



Priority Key Deliverables Apr-Jun 23 and Jul-Sep 23 Oct – Dec 23 Jan – Mar 24 % Objective 
Completion 

Year End Status 

Taking a Person and 
Community Centred 
Approach to Public 
Sector reform 

• Map models of strength based 
working and assess commonality of 
approach 

• Community Mental Health hubs 
• Develop framework for consistent 

and multiagency approach 
• Wellness Strategy 

• Pilot consistent 
place-based 
strengths-based 
approach 

• Bury East Family 
Hub open 

• Radcliffe Family Hub 
open 

75% 

We are reviewing our 
approach to the Family Hub 
roll-out, informed by the 

ongoing review of the 
council estate and an 
assessment of need, 

neighbourhood by 
neighbourhood, with a 

particular focus on the most 
socially challenged areas of 
Bury. To date, no suitable 
building has been identified 
in Radcliffe to host a Family 

Hub. There are several 
possible buildings, but none 

are large enough. 
Furthermore, given the size 
and spread of need within 
Radcliffe, it is likely that a 
'hub and spoke' approach 
will be required to ensure 
that services are available 
close to where families live. 

8. Delivering 
sustainable 
Housing Growth 

STH Options 
Appraisal 
 

• Decision to in-source 
• Tenant engagement 
• Improvement plan agreed 

 

• Final decision made 
 

• Readiness for 
regulator complete 
 100% COMPLETE 

Housing 
Development to 
deliver 700 new 
homes 

• William Kemp Heaton (18 LD Units), 
Willow St (13) 

• Start on site – Wheatfield (30) 
 

• Start on Site East 
Lance Papermill 
(400 homes) 

• Place for Everyone 
adopted (Elton) 

• Start on site: Green 
St (132); Seedfield 
(86), School St (91) 100% COMPLETE 

9. Celebrating 
culture and 
supporting the 
creative sector 

Launch and 
Implementation of 
new Cultural 
Strategy  
Delivery of savings in 
BAM  
Development of 
programme of 
events  
UKSPF monitoring  
 

• Launch event for strategy 
• Identify and bid for funding 

opportunities including LIF 3, MEND 
and GMCA funding 

• Events programme go live 
• Develop plans for new library in 

Prestwich 
• Develop plans to relocate library in 

Bury 
• Support plans for commercialisation 

of BAM 

• Appoint Flexihall 
provider  

• Approve BAM 
option  

• Events Programme 

• Secure capital 
funding / MEND for 
BAM 

• Secure ACE funding 
to move Bury Library 
and Capital to 
refurbish 

• Events Programme 

100% 
 

COMPLETE 

P
age 31



Priority Key Deliverables Apr-Jun 23 and Jul-Sep 23 Oct – Dec 23 Jan – Mar 24 % Objective 
Completion 

Year End Status 

• Options appraisal with market 
curators 

• Events programme 

 

 

En
ab

le
rs

  

 Key Deliverables Apr-Jun 23 Jul-Sep 23 Oct – Dec 23 Jan – Mar 24 % Objective 
Completion and 

Quarterly Activity 
RAG 

Commentary 

Finance  Efficiencies achieved  
Amendments 
delivered  

Savings delivered Savings delivered Medium Term Financial Strategy 
Savings delivered  
MTFS updated  

Savings 
delivered 88% 

A new savings programme for 
the next three years is being 

developed and any savings that 
have not been achieved will be 

replaced or rephased. 

Comms & 
Marketing  

Revised 
Communication 
Strategy and Campaign 
Plan, including Place-
Based Marketing 
Strategy  
Continued roll out of 
digital transformation 
and online offer  

LET’s Brand 
Council Brand 
Comms, Marketing and 
Engagement Restructure 
consultation 
Annual Campaign plan of 
communications agreed 

Implement restructure  
Evaluation framework in place 
for campaigns 
Introduce monitoring and 
evaluation dashboard 
Deliver campaign plan 

Deliver LET’s Fix It campaign plan  Deliver LET’s 
Fix It 

campaign 
plan  

100% COMPLETE 
 

Internal 
Culture 
Change and 
Inclusion  

  Ward walks and new 
approach to casework 
Plan for year of focus on Care 
Leavers 
Enhanced engagement with 
BAME and Disability focused 
BAME groups 

LET’S Challenge 
Workforce Representation 
Plan 

People Strategy  
Refresh of Inclusion Communications 
and Events Plan   

Formal review 
of Joint 

Inclusion 
Strategy   

95% 
Inclusion Strategy is ongoing 

and formal review will be 
delivered in 24/25 

 

Workforce 
Change  

Structural change and 
service improvements  

Education, Comms, Legal, ICT, 
HR 

Operational Services   

 100% COMPLETE 

 
 

P
age 32



Conclusion 
 

92. At Year End there is a mostly positive picture of delivery despite the 
challenging economy and increased demand on services in the past year 

with only a few objectives being rolled over into the next Corporate Plan for 
2024/25. There is lots of evidence of delivery impact against the top three 
priorities for 2023/24 which will be built on in 2024/25. 

 
93. Where objectives have not been delivered there have been mitigation 

provided in terms of delivery in the next Corporate Plan. 
 

94. Feedback from the 2023/24 plan has been used to develop the Corporate 

Plan for 2024/25 where the priorities have been further refined to ensure full 
delivery within the year. This is based on feedback from the internal Council 

Performance Reporting processes and the Local Government Association 
Corporate Peer Challenge which took place in December 2023. 
 

95. Performance data from the ongoing monitoring of the Corporate Plan has 
been used to produce the Productivity Plan for the council as required by 

DLUHC. This has been supplemented by Corporate Peer Review data from 
the Local Government Association. 

 
Recommendations 

 

96. Cabinet to note the update on progress against performance and delivery of 
the Corporate Plan for 2023/24. Cabinet also to approve the submission of 
the Productivity Plan and recommendations about monitoring of the plan 

itself. 
_________________________________________________________ 

Links with the Corporate Priorities: 

 
97. This report supplements the State of the Borough Outcomes Report in terms 

of providing further information on the contribution of the Council to the 2030 
vision. The Corporate Plan priorities are linked to the seven objectives of the 

LET’S vision. 
_________________________________________________________ 
Equality Impact and Considerations: 

 

98. This report demonstrates the impact of our activity on the users of council 

services and the impact on the broader community. 
 

Environmental Impact and Considerations: 
 

99. There are no specific environmental considerations within this report however 

the data tracks progress towards the environmental commitments within the 
Council’s Corporate Plan. 

 

Assessment and Mitigation of Risk: 

Risk / Opportunity  Mitigation  

Page 33



Lack of capacity to deliver against the 

Corporate Plan priorities which reduces our 
ability to achieve the LET’S Vision 

Further attention will be given to the 

activities rated as Amber in order to 
ensure that resources are used to 
appropriately to support priorities 

however in some cases reprofiling may 
be required on a case by case basis. 

_________________________________________________________ 

Legal Implications: 

 
100. There are no legal implications however the regular reporting of performance 

is part of the Council’s approach to good governance. 
 

Financial Implications: 
 

101. This report is reporting on the delivery of performance against the Council 
priorities set out in the corporate plan. The Corporate Plan is reviewed and 

produced annually in line with the budget setting process and the budget is 
developed to deliver the Council’s priorities. There are no direct financial 
implications of this report as the budget to deliver the priorities was approved 

by Full Council in February 2023. 
 

Appendices: 
Appendix - Productivity Plan v2.docx 

 

Background papers: 

None.  
 
Please include a glossary of terms, abbreviations and acronyms used in this 
report.  

 

Term Meaning 

ALDP Accelerated Land Disposal Programme 

ASC Adult Social Care 

BAME Black, Asian or Minority Ethnic 

BHEAST Bury Health Employment and Skills Team 

BID Business Improvement District 

CLA Children Looked After 

CME & EHE Children Missing Education & Elective Home Education 

CPP Child Protection Plan 

CQC Care Quality Commission 

CVD Cardiovascular Disease 

DfE Department for Education 

DLUHC Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 

DoLS Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 

DSG Dedicated Schools Grant 

DWP Department for Work and Pensions 

EDI Equality Diversity and Inclusion 

EET Education, Employment, or Training 

Page 34

https://burygovuk.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/sites/CabinetReports/Shared%20Documents/General/July%2024%20Cabinet%20Papers/Appendix%20-%20Productivity%20Plan%20v2.docx?d=w436b6068e85941c3ada59b333dc3b6b8&csf=1&web=1&e=rtqdj3


EHCP Education, Health and Care Plan 

EHE/CME Elective Home Education/Children Missing Education 

FOI Freedom of Information 

H&S Health & Safety 

HSE Health and Safety Executive 

ICB Integrated Care Board 

IMC Intermediate Care 

JSNA Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

KPI Key Performance Indicator 

MTFS Medium Term Financial Strategy 

NW North West 

PDR Personal Development Review 

PfE Places for Everyone 

PRU Pupil Referral Unit 

PSR Public Service Reform 

PSV Project Safety Valve 

SALT Speech and Language Therapy 

SEMH Social Emotional and Mental Health 

SENCO Special Educational Needs Co-Ordinator 

SEND Special Educational Needs and Disabilities 

SME Small to Medium Enterprise 

STH Six Town Housing 

TfGM Transport for Greater Manchester 

UKSPF UK Shared Prosperity Fund 

VCFA Voluntary Community and Faith Alliance 

VCSE Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise 

 

  

Page 35



Appendix 1: 
 

Corporate 
Plan 

Objective 
Measure Q1 2023/24 Q2 2023/24 Q3 2023/24 Q4 2023/24 Trend Benchmark 

8
 

Average waiting time on housing 
register (all applications) (snapshot) 

513 548 512 553 ↑ TBC Local 

Number of rough sleepers currently 
being supported 

81 72 74 101 ↑ 35 
Previous 

local target 

2
 

The % of pupils attending a good or 
better Primary School in Bury 

92.7% 90.9% 91.2% 92.6% ↑ 93.7% NW 

The % of pupils attending a good or 
better Secondary School in Bury 

65.6% 65.7% 59.4% 59.2% ↓ 74.8% NW 

The % of pupils attending a good or 
better School in Bury 

81.6% 80.6% 78.2% 78.8% ↑ 86% NW 

4
 

Referral to treatment total waiting 
list entries 

32158 31362 31790 31183 ↓ 

Local 
Target 
under 

Review 

 

Referral to treatment total number 
waiting in excess of 52 weeks 

2601 2598 2299 1828 ↓ 

Local 
Target 
under 

Review 

 

P
age 36



IAPT waiting times % 6 weeks or less 
from referral 

87.41% 94.64% 93.52% 94.1% ↑ 75% 
Previous 

local target 

Number of referrals to Adult Social 
Care (ASC) 

1052 1340 1483 1642 ↑ 

Local 
Target 
under 

Review 

 

Proportion of completed Adult Social 
Care (ASC) annual reviews in a rolling 
12 month period 

55% 51.4% 51% 55% ↑ 

Local 
Target 
under 

Review 

 

6
 % of council vehicles changed to 

lower emission versions 
70% 76% 76% 98% ↑ 100 Local 

7
 Number of customers with a One 

Account 
12186 15425 18597 23601 ↑ 30,000 Local 

En
ab

le
rs

 

% of FOIs completed on time (Bury 
Council) 

98% 99% 85% 85% ↔ 100 
Previous 

local target 

Number of SARs overdue (Bury 
Council) 

14 12 17 22 ↑ 0 
Previous 

local target 

Number of data breaches  36 23 35 ↑ 0 Local 

Average number of days to respond 
to councillor member queries 
(snapshot) 

8.7 11.9 13.8 13.9 ↑ 10 
Previous 

local target 

 

P
age 37



Service Measure Q1 2023/24 Q2 2023/24 Q3 2023/24 Q4 2023/24 Trend 
B

G
I 

Total planning applications received 206 208 197 177 ↓ 

% of planning decisions granted 88% 84% 86% 88% ↑ 

Number of statutory homeless cases open on 
the last day of the month 

724 845 767 745 ↓ 

Number of households in temporary 
accommodation on last day of the month 

111 126 137 160 ↑ 

% of move ons from homelessness/threat of 
homelessness into permanent accommodation 

49 44 36 35 ↓ 

NOMIS Claimant Count  4800 4920 5335 ↑ 

Annual housing completions boroughwide 180 160 280 210 ↓ 

Number of housing units completed in the 
borough which are affordable 

20 32 145 80 ↓ 

% Housing completions on brownfield land 
boroughwide 

62% 68% 88% 92% ↑ 

% of Pupils in Bury Schools with an EHCP 5.1% 5.5% 5.7%  ↑ 

Number of Children in Bury Schools with an 
EHCP 

1514 1594 1681  ↑ 

P
age 38



Service Measure Q1 2023/24 Q2 2023/24 Q3 2023/24 Q4 2023/24 Trend 

EHCP: Percent of Plans issued on time, 
compliance at 20 weeks 

64 73 95 100 ↑ 

Refusal rate for new EHCP's 3.40 6.4 0 7.3 ↑ 

Rate of School Permanent Exclusions 0.14  N/A 0.09 0.37 ↑ 

Rate of School Fixed Term Exclusions 9.4  N/A 4.4 18.3 ↑ 

Elective Home Education (EHE) 256 247 273 286 ↑ 

Rate of CLA per 10,000 children (latest 
snapshot) 

81 83 82 82 ↔ 

Rate of CPP per 10,000 children aged 0-17 
(latest) 

56 45 45 48 ↑ 

Rate of open CIN per 10,000 children aged 0-17 
(latest) 

262 237 237 297 ↑ 

Rate of referrals per 10,000 children aged 0-17 
over the last 6 months 

424 839 369 555 ↑ 

Re-referrals: children with a previous referral 
within 12 months of their latest referral (last 6 

months) 
33 26 19 31 ↑ 

Re-registrations for children who started on a 
CP plan (ever) (last 6 months) 

38 38 6 16 ↑ 

P
age 39



Service Measure Q1 2023/24 Q2 2023/24 Q3 2023/24 Q4 2023/24 Trend 

Education, Employment, or Training (EET) of 
16-17 year olds (%) 

95.3% 94.1% 95.9% 96.1% ↑ 

Education, Employment, or Training (EET) of 
17-18 year olds (care leavers) 

52% 43% 62% 54% ↓ 

Education, Employment, or Training (EET) of 
19-21 year olds (care leavers) 

49% 46% 50% 42% ↓ 

% of children defined as ready for school 69.9% 84.7% 81.5%  ↓ 

C
C

 

Number of births registered 404 396 418 345 ↓ 

Number of deaths registered 505 482 478 507 ↑ 

Contact centre – number of contacts received 
(Monthly average) 

18470 17668 17027 18916 ↑ 

Sickness absence: average number of days lost 
per FTE per year (Bury Council) 

13.67 14.07 14.68   ↑ 

% Staff turnover (Bury Council) 14.1% 12.47% 12.4%   ↓ 

Number of FOIs outstanding over timescale 
(Bury Council) 

20 29 21  11 ↓ 

% annual PDRs completed in previous 12 
months (Bury Council) 

48.6% 53.2% 59.2% 58.4% ↓ 

P
age 40



Service Measure Q1 2023/24 Q2 2023/24 Q3 2023/24 Q4 2023/24 Trend 

% of corporate complaints responded to within 
timescale (Bury Council) 

80 64 53 59 ↑ 

Percentage of staff in scope who've completed 
mandatory training module: GDPR (in past 12 

months) 
80.4 78.4 91.3 91.2 ↓ 

Average number of days to respond to 
councillor member queries (snapshot) 

8.70 11.90 13.80  13.90 ↑ 

C
C

 -
 F

in
an

ce
 

% error rate - Payroll 99.17 99.21 99.07 99.15 ↑ 

% of invoices paid within 30 days (Council) 99.45 98.46 99.36 99.42 ↑ 

% Council Tax collected 26.33 52.44 78.53 95.25 ↑ 

% Business rates collected 23.97 51.63 78.41 93.88 ↑ 

% of sundry debt collected within 30 days 32.86% 20.74 37.25 36.00 ↓ 

Total debt outstanding (customer accounts) 
after 30 days 

£17,232,397 £17,356,467  £     19,005,586  £19,203,881 ↑ 

Days taken to process benefits - new claims 35.08 33.11 37.89 32.65 ↓ 

Days taken to process benefits change in 
circumstances 

4.42 4.6 5.05 4.22 ↓ 

P
age 41



Service Measure Q1 2023/24 Q2 2023/24 Q3 2023/24 Q4 2023/24 Trend 
H

&
A

C
 

Referral to treatment total number waiting in 
excess of 52 weeks 

2601 2598 2299 1828 ↓ 

Patients in Fairfield General Hospital with No 
Right to Reside on the last day of the month 

76 61 86 86 ↔ 

IMC (Killelea) Bed Occupancy (%) 93 89 86 91 ↑ 

Residential and Nursing Care Bed Occupancy 
(%) 

83 85 84 84 ↔ 

Open safeguarding enquiries 759 729 640 663 ↑ 

The percentage of adult social care providers 
rated good or outstanding by CQC 

83 83 84 84 ↔ 

Percentage of 10/11-year olds who are a 
healthy weight 

57.6% 60.4% 59.1%  ↓ 

% of physically active adults 63.60% 70.06% 69.20%  ↓ 

% of physically active children and young 
people 

39.30% 38.10% 47.10% 47.3% ↑ 

O
p

s 

Number of air quality monitoring stations 
breaching nitrogen dioxide targets 

6 0 1 1 ↔ 

Total CO2 emissions produced within the 
borough 

  857.8 764.7 878.1 ↑ 

P
age 42



Service Measure Q1 2023/24 Q2 2023/24 Q3 2023/24 Q4 2023/24 Trend 

Total CO2 emissions resulting from Council 
operations (tCO2e) 

15650 13715 11007 9282.39  ↓ 

Number of EV Charge Points  29 28 27 45 ↑ 

% of street lighting converted to LED 68.05% 69%     ↑ 

Waste collection (tonnes) 15,913.91 15281.5 12820.32 13,837.28 ↑ 

Waste collection: grey bins (tonnes) 6,888.35 6836.98 6761.58 7,006.92 ↑ 

Waste collection: blue bins (tonnes) 2,304 2197.46 2033.9 2357.54 ↑ 

Waste collection: green bins (tonnes) 1,539.34 1559.54 1046.5 1690.26 ↑ 

Number of missed bin collections per 100,000 107 124 113 115 ↑ 

Proportion of household waste recycled 56.7 57.22 49.3 49.3 ↔ 

The amount (tonnes) of residual household 
waste per household 

89.02 87.68 86.81   ↓ 

Waste collection (tonnes) from street cleaning 904.76 643.22 877.42  805.32 ↓ 

P
age 43



Service Measure Q1 2023/24 Q2 2023/24 Q3 2023/24 Q4 2023/24 Trend 

Number of Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) issued 
for littering 

 6 8 5 ↓ 

Number of Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) issued 
for fly tipping 

 9 3 3 ↔ 

Number of ongoing prosecutions for fly tipping  8 5 3 ↓ 

Number of new unauthorised traveller 
encampments on public land 

 0 0 0 ↔ 

Number of council buildings with carbon 
reduction measures introduced 

 7 7 7 ↔ 

Average time taken to repair street lighting 17.7 7.56  11.2  14.7 ↑ 

 

P
age 44



Appendix 2 – Productivity Plan 
 

Productivity Plan 

July 2024 

Page 45



 

 

Transformation 

How you have transformed the way you design and deliver services to make 

better use of resources. 

 

In 2020 we launched our aspirational and ambitious LET’S Do It! Community 
Strategy, setting out a vision for the borough through to 2030: to stand out as a 
place that is achieving faster economic growth than the national average, 

with lower than national average levels of deprivation.  
 

Since then, the Team Bury Partnership have worked together to transform our 
collective response to public service reform and to increase our focus on the seven 
high level outcomes committed to. Within the Council, this commitment is being 

realised through the delivery of our Corporate Plan and its constituent parts, one of 
which is our Transformation Strategy which was established in 2021/22 to deliver:  

 
 Improved ways of working to facilitate the Council’s contribution to the delivery 

of the borough’s strategy, LET’S Do It! and the Council's Corporate Plan 

 Savings of £4.937m by 2023/24 to support the delivery of the Council’s Medium 
Term Financial Strategy.  

  
Achieving these objectives has been delivered through three programmes of work: 
LET’S Do It! Once, Well and Flexibly. In parallel a new digital strategy has been 

developed to enable transformation through:  
 

 Promotion of a digital first approach to engagement  
 Providing a high-quality digital workplace to underpin agile working  
 Creating improved access to business intelligence  

 Supporting collaboration between colleagues, partners and wider stakeholders  
  

The Council has had a long-established Change Agent Network which plays an 
active role in improving systems and processes and they have taken on a key role 
in the Council’s Transformation Programme. Through supporting the introduction of 

Office 365 our Change Agents have become Digital Champions with over a 
hundred members of staff supporting their peers to work more productively and to 

use the new tools with more confidence. This has allowed us to introduce a new e-
mail retention policy and improved our information governance.  
 

The legacy of the transformation programme mentioned above is being used to 
further improve Council services. For example, the LET’S Do It … Well! 

programme invested in our HR System, iTrent, allowing more self-service options 
for our managers and employees, reducing demand on business admin staff. 
Likewise LET’S Do It … Once! has seen the introduction of a new website for the 

Council which provides a more modern platform and user-friendly templates to put 
more of our services online. The ability to modernise our online presence is now 

being taken forward by other services such as Leisure and Registrars.  
In the context of the need to deliver £30m in savings over the coming three years 
(as set out in the MTFP agreed in February 2024) the Council is progressing an 

ambitious plan of transformation to drive financial saving in tandem with creating 
the conditions and culture to deliver on the LET’S Do It! Vision for Bury. This plan 

is being driven across three strands of action: 

Page 46



 

 

 
1.  Growth: Continuing to develop the Place through strategic regeneration and 

increased revenue opportunities and collection to ensure a long-term 
sustainable future for the Council and the borough  

2. Strategic Finance: Strengthening the way we use our money and our 

financial planning, management and modelling approach to deliver 
efficiencies and opportunities  

3. Organisation: Remodelling the way the organisation works to identify and 

deliver efficiencies through:  

 
 The clear and transparent application of best practice organisational design 

principles and benchmarking against sector and industry specific standards 

 A focus on removing any remaining duplication across functions, non value 
added activity and exploring options to share services with others  

 A programme to identify and exploit any and all efficiencies through digital 
innovation and streamlining our systems, policies, processes and 
governance.  

 
As set out above the Council needs to deliver £30m in savings over this three year 

budget cycle. We are currently using capital funding to progress our Future Estates 
Programme. This programme aims to deliver improvements and efficiencies across 
our whole estate. A key project to note is the identification and implementation of 

opportunities for new housing on our existing Estates whilst delivering 
improvements to the environment for existing residents.  

 
Bury utilises a neighbourhood working model which looks at tailored early 
intervention and prevention methods at a local granular level. This is part of the 

wider Greater Manchester Public Service Reform work. In particular it sets out how 
we will transform the way in which we organise ourselves for case management 

through Neighbourhood-focused practitioner networks, and the way we engage 
people &communities in a place embedding the LET’s principles. To drive LETS at 
place we’ve established Public Service Leadership Teams in each of Bury’s five 

neighbourhood footprints. PSLTs are place-based individuals leading the delivery 
of activity at a neighbourhood level from across each pillar of our neighbourhood 

model, providing system leadership. 
 
In addition to neighbourhood working and wider public sector reform as described 

above, the LET’S strategy has also led to the development of our LET’S Fix It … 
Together campaign, which calls for the national Fair Funding Review to undertaken 

as quickly as possible in order to acknowledge the unprecedented demands on local 
authorities budgets such as inflation, increased social care costs and the need to 
support vulnerable residents with the cost-of-living crisis. This campaign has been 

timed in conjunction with the Local Government Association’s input into the Autumn 
Statement process and is twofold. Whilst asking for fair funding, it also promotes all 

of the work the Council and our communities are doing to come together to protect 
services for those who need them and use of collective strengths to help people to 
help themselves. This further reinforces our community engagement and partnership 

work where we look to support our communities to build on their strengths and create 
sustainability in this sector. 

 

Page 47



 

 

 

  

Page 48



 

 

 

Technology 

How you plan to take advantage of technology and make better use of data to 
improve decision making, service design and use of resources 

 
Bury Council shares data with other organisations through our local Supporting 
Families Programme across Greater Manchester. This provides us with a holistic 

view of children and families and their interventions to help improve outcomes. 
There is an upcoming project in Greater Manchester looking at Community Safety 

Partnership data sharing with a similar aim which we will be participating in. The 
Council shares intelligence locally within the Neighbourhood Public Sector 
Leadership Teams and used this to target services appropriately. Presently it is 

identifying partnership opportunities with other LAs to data share in order to 
produce efficiencies and reduce duplication across the sector e.g. reports from 

Liquid Logic, social care records system. 
 
The Council aims to enhance their decision making by using technologies including 

Microsoft Intelligent Data Platform, Power BI, Logic Apps and AI. Improving data 
quality through leveraging pipelines and ETL (Extract, Transform and Load), while 

providing a single source of the truth, enabling us to make data driven decisions 
with confidence. This will then allow the Council to start exploring how to connect 
the data to gain a better understanding of our citizens and provide powerful 

insights into their needs. 
 

 

  

Page 49



 

 

 

Reduce 

Your plans to reduce wasteful spend within your organisation and systems.  

 

Bury Council’s STAR Chamber reviews all the spend and sets budget for the 
financial years, agreeing the growth requirements and budget assumptions for the 
MTFP. This is a line-by-line review on all expenditure and staff establishments to 

assure all public money is not wasted and the Council is delivering a standard of 
service in relation to the resources available. Analysing performance against roles to 

identify issues in capacity, assessing value for money from staff investment. 
Executive Deliver Board reviews the savings delivery for the Council and provides 
support in identifying one off or replacement savings where targets are undeliverable 

within the year and across the MTFP. Savings monitored throughout Executive 
Delivery Board and ongoing STAR Chamber reviews until budget is agreed as part 

of the constitutional budget setting process. The MTFP is reviewed quarterly and 
presented at the STAR Chamber meetings and Strategic Leadership Gorup and 
executive meetings. 

 
The Council requests business cases for all investments, capital and revenue and a 

robust review is carried out to identify the savings deliverable over the medium term 
and improved outcomes and efficiencies. Invested in FAP, agreed funding for us to 
employ revenue staff to reduce empty buildings, reducing revenue costs. 

Implementing the IT/Digital strategy will reduce costs across the organisation. 
Investing to save in children’s services to reduce demand on other services and 

review services in place to ensure spend is appropriate for desired outcomes. 
 
The Council is committed to equality, diversity, and inclusion as a core theme of our 

LET’S Do It Strategy and an essential component in delivering truly inclusive growth. 
We employ an Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Manager who works jointly across 

the Council and the NHS in Bury to lead on this agenda and ensure we are fulfilling 
our statutory equality obligations. Our central budget for EDI activity across the 
Council (excluding the one post employed in this area) is £1,500. All staff are 

expected to undertake equality training on joining the Council and refresh every 
three years. In partnership with our community groups the Council also provide 

specialist training and support to managers and those services who work directly 
with different areas of our community. 
 

As with all public sector bodies, the Council has a set of equality objectives, agreed 
formally by Members. Updates on progress with these objectives are provided 

regularly through our Inclusion Working Group and via the Cabinet portfolio holder. 
The council conduct analysis and monitoring as per our obligations under the Public 
Sector Equality Duty. Inclusion is also monitored through our bi-annual staff Pulse 

Survey. We use benchmarking and frameworks to assess the effectiveness of our 
EDI work.  

 
Bury is a member of the GM Good Employment Charter which requires us to 
evidence how we apply EDI to recruitment and the employee lifecycle. This is an 

annual requirement which allows us to monitor progress year on year. We are clear 
that, through being an inclusive employer, and recognising the individual identities 

Page 50



 

 

and needs of those across our workforce we are both supporting and getting the 
best out of our people.  

 
All agency and consultancy activity across the Council is subject to a robust internal 

approval process and, to ensure transparency and be clear on outcomes, 
information is shared with both Members and the Councils Trade Unions through the 
Corporate Joint Consultative Committee (JCC). In 23/24 we spend approximately 

8% of our pay bill on agency staff. The Council engages the overwhelming majority 
of agency staff through a managed service provider contract which is a joint 

arrangement across Greater Manchester. This arrangement supports significant 
efficiencies through economies of scale across the Conurbation and, given the 
scale, dedicated contract management support is in place to ensure the quality of 

service and address any issues.  
 

The Council has invested time and resource in understanding how our demand and 
savings proposals relate to opportunities for transformation in high spend areas such 
as social care for children and adults. In addition, we are prioritising other activity 

such as estates rationalisation, investing in more energy efficient operations and 
ensuring we maximise income where appropriate from fees, charges and other 

income sources.  
 

Analysis of data within a recent report from the Institute of Fiscal Studies has 

highlighted that Bury Council is in the bottom 20% worst-funded councils, ranking 
122 out of 150 upper-tier English local authorities in terms of money to spend per 

resident. This, combined with calculations which show that the Council’s annual real 
term core spending power has been reduced by 29% since 2010/11 provides the 
context for the difficult decisions that need to be taken in agreeing our next budget. 

 
The Council spent 0.13% of its pay bill on Trade Union facilities time in 23/24 

 

  

Page 51



 

 

 

Barriers 

The barriers preventing progress that the Government can help to reduce or 
remove. 

 
Broadly speaking the key barriers impacting on the Council’s ability to improve 
productivity are similar to those seen by most local authorities: 

 
1) A lack of funding to deliver improvements – The need to utilise all available 

funding (including reserves) to ensure the delivery of statutory services and 
address quality challenges in key areas identifies through external regulation 
(principally children’s social care) means there is limited money available to 

invest in service improvement or developmental activity 
2) Increasing demand – The increasing volume and complexity of demand 

means more resources need to be focused on responsive and targeted activity 
as opposed to universal and preventative services 

3) Increasing regulatory framework – The Council now faces regulation from a 

range of bodies which have complex, and sometime competing demands. This 
includes OfSted (both ILACS and SEND), the CQC for Adult Social Care and 

the Regulator of Social Housing.  
4) Recruitment challenges – The crowing challenge of recruiting staff into key 

roles  

 
We are working hard both within this context and to address these through 

innovation, collaboration and transformation as set out above.  
 

 

 
Monitoring of Productivity Plan 

 

Bury Council’s corporate plan monitoring and reporting reflects on a suite of key 
performance indicators, including those that represent the rates at which work is 

completed efficiently or to the standard expected. This process not only provides 
assurance about the delivery of our corporate plan but also reporting on business-

as-usual departmental delivery. This is where most of the productivity plan 
monitoring will be found. Delivery against the Corporate Plan is monitored through 
monthly reporting by Executive Directors to their Cabinet Member and Chief 

Executive. Formal reports are presented on a quarterly basis to Cabinet with 
additional analysis via our Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

Page 52



 

Productivity Plan 

July 2024 

Page 53



 

 

Our Vision 
 

In 2020 the aspirational and ambitious LET’S Do It! Community Strategy for Bury 
was launched, setting out a vision for the borough through to 2030: to stand out as 

a place that is achieving faster economic growth than the national average, 
with lower than national average levels of deprivation. Since then, both Bury 

Council and the wider Team Bury Partnership have worked together to transform the 

collective response to public service reform and to increase focus on the seven high 
level outcomes committed to within the Strategy. There is now a much stronger 

“golden thread” that binds the collective endeavour across the partnership.   
 
Bury is nearly three years into this decade of reform and good progress has been 

made. The contribution to LET’S by the Council are managed each year through a 
Corporate Plan which sets out the delivery and activity. For the last three years a 

framework of the “3Rs” within the Corporate Plan has been used to direct activity: 
Response; Recovery and Renewal to show that LET’s Do It! did not mean “Let’s do 
everything”.   More recently the priorities within the Corporate Plan have been 

reviewed to ensure that activity is focused on the right things – to ensure productivity 
and efficiency – those priorities are: Sustainable Inclusive Growth, Improving 

Childrens Lives and Tackling Inequalities.  
 
Financial Context 

 
In February 2024, the latest budget statement described the wider challenging and 

uncertain national and local financial context in which Bury are operating.  Despite 
recent reductions in the rate of inflation the Council is still addressing the impact of 
11% inflation which has introduced circa £11m of cost pressure since 2022.  In 

addition this has been exacerbated by ongoing increases in demand across all 
statutory services including social care for adults and children, special educational 

needs and support services, social housing and homelessness duties.  Collectively 
these have presented a 17% demand increase on the council’s budget against an 
income increase of 7%.  Of this 7%, 57% is attributable to Council Tax.  For Bury, 

these pressures come on top of systemic underfunding as demonstrated by the 2023 
study by the Institute of Fiscal Studies which highlighted Bury Council’s position in 

the bottom 20% worst funded councils.  Real term core spending power has been 
reduced by 29% since 2010/11. 
 

The diagrams below show the change in Core Spending Power for Bury since 2015-
16 and the increasing reliance on Council Tax income streams.  They also show the 

percentage increase in demand across a range of our services that have been 
delivered during this period of reduced funding this includes the impact of increasing 
population, particularly older people which increases demand on our range of 

services for adults over 65. 
 

Page 54



 

 

 

 
 

In terms of the stability of the workforce to deliver services – the overall size has 
remained relatively stable with a 23 FTE increase between April 2022 and April 2024 

– however this masks a notable change in the shape of the workforce with a 92 FTE 
increase in workforce across the social care departments, a 34 FTE decrease in 
Operations and a 74 FTE decrease across corporate functions.  However sickness 

absence, whilst reduced over the past year remains above the sector average which 
may impact the ability to deliver. 

 
Transformation 
 

In 2021/22 the Transformation Strategy was established to deliver:   
  

 Improved ways of working to facilitate the Council’s contribution to the 
delivery of the borough’s strategy, LET’S Do It! and the Council's 
Corporate Plan  

 Delivery of savings to support the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Strategy.   

 
The objectives were delivered through three programmes of work: LET’S Do It! … 
Once, Well and Flexibly and in parallel a new digital strategy was developed to 

enable further transformation and efficiency.  The Council has continued to set the 
tone for continuous improvement across the organisation.   This has been in the form 

of rounds of service reviews, departmental restructures and improvement support 
through LGA peer reviews. The Council’s Corporate Peer Challenge was undertaken 
in November / December 2023 and recognised the work undertaken to continue the 

transformation of the Council and realise efficiencies over recent years. It proposed 
that Bury build on this by: 

 Establishing a corporate transformation plan, approach, resource and 
culture to support delivery of the MTFP 

 Further developing finance, HR and IT – including their role and the 
relationships they require. These services are key to enabling the delivery 

of the council’s transformation needs.  

In the context of the need to deliver £30M in savings over the coming three years (as 
set out in the MTFP agreed in February 2024) the Council is progressing an 

Measure First Date Period Last Date Period % Demand Increase

2014 2023

310 350

2015 2023

2622 3239

2015/16 2023/24

1879 2375

2014 2023

174 690

2014 2023

1213 2241

2014 2023

340 461

2021 2023

2853 3532

2021 2022

10878 13348

2015 2022

33,413 35,758

2017/18 2023/24

4175 5220

36%

24%

23%

7%

25%

13%

24%

26%

297%

85%
Numbers of 2 year funded children

Waste collection (tonnes) from street cleaning

Population aged 65+

Funded Children - 30 Hours childcare

Number of potholes repaired

Number of Looked After Children

Referrals to Childrens Social Services

Housing Waiting List

Requests for EHCPs

Total EHCPs or Statements

Page 55



 

 

ambitious plan of transformation to drive financial saving in tandem with creating the 
conditions and culture to deliver on the LET’S Do It! Vision for Bury.  

Expenditure  

 

Bury Council’s STAR Chamber reviews all the spend and sets budget for the 

financial years, agreeing the growth requirements and budget assumptions for the 
MTFP. This is a line-by-line review on all expenditure and staff establishments to 
assure all public money is not wasted and the Council is delivering a standard of 

service in relation to the resources available. Analysing performance against roles to 
identify issues in capacity, assessing value for money from staff investment. 

 
Executive Delivery Board reviews the savings delivery for the Council and provides 
support in identifying one off or replacement savings where targets are undeliverable 

within the year and across the MTFP.  Savings monitored throughout Executive 
Delivery Board and ongoing STAR Chamber reviews until budget is agreed as part of 

the constitutional budget setting process. The MTFP is reviewed quarterly and 
presented at the STAR Chamber meetings and Strategic Leadership Gorup and 
executive meetings. 

 
In terms of engaging capacity to deliver any requirements for agency or consultancy 

activity across the Council is subject to a robust internal approval process and, to 
ensure transparency and be clear on outcomes, information is shared with both 
Members and the Councils Trade Unions through the Corporate Joint Consultative 

Committee (JCC).  The Council engages the overwhelming majority of agency staff 
through a managed service provider contract which is a joint arrangement across 

Greater Manchester. This arrangement supports significant efficiencies through 
economies of scale across the Conurbation and, given the scale, dedicated contract 
management support is in place to ensure the quality of service and address any 

issues.  
 

We have strengthened our Senior Leadership Group where the Executive and their 
direct reports meet on a monthly basis to discuss key issues and monitor the delivery 
of the Corporate Plan through a rotating agenda which focuses on Workforce, 

Budget, Performance. This is also where shared “wicked issues” are discussed and 
owned.  Beneath this is a much larger Senior Management Forum consisting of staff 

who report directly into SLG. This group meets regularly and has been used as a key 
information sharing group, but also as an opportunity to deliver consistent messaging 
and training around corporate activities such as our new Procurement Regulations, 

the importance of Risk Management and improving report writing standards for our 
committees. We also discuss key leadership themes such as inclusion health and 

safety and our commitment to corporate parenting.  
 

The Council has invested time and resource in understanding our demand and 

savings proposals relate to opportunities for transformation in high spend areas such 
as social care for children and adults. In addition, we are prioritising other activity 

such as estates rationalisation, investing in more energy efficient operations and 
ensuring we maximise income where appropriate from fees, charges and other 
income sources.  
 

Page 56



 

 

 
Monitoring Performance and Productivity 

 

The Corporate Plan and LET’S monitoring mechanisms show that despite the 

challenging financial environment that delivery and productivity continue despite 
increasing demand and reducing funding.  The suite of KPIs within the Corporate 
Plan reporting process continue to demonstrate the delivery of key activities.  

Reports are taken to Cabinet on a quarterly basis which both provide analysis of 
delivery of key milestones set out in the plan at the beginning of the year and the 

performance of associated KPIs. 
 
The Corporate plan monitoring and reporting reflects on a suite of KPIs, including 

those that represent the rates at which work is completed efficiently or to the 
standard expected.  This process not only provides assurance about the delivery of 

our corporate plan but also reporting on business as usual departmental delivery.  
This is where most of the productivity monitoring will be found. 
 

Delivery against the Corporate Plan is monitored through monthly reporting by 
Executive Directors to their Cabinet Member and Chief Executive. Formal reports are 

presented on a quarterly basis to Cabinet with additional analysis via the 
Performance and Finance Sub-Group of our Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

To avoid any additional burden that may impact on our productivity, this mechanism 
will be used to publicly monitor our productivity as per the requirements set down by 

the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Community. (DLUHC) 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 57



 

 

 
 
 

Page 58



 

  
 

Report to: Cabinet Date: 16 July 2024 

Subject: Finance Update Report 

Report of Cabinet Member for Finance and Transformation 

 

Summary 

1. To present to members the 2023/24 revenue outturn position. 

 

2. To present to members the updated Medium-Term Financial Forecast (MTFF) 

position for 2024/25 to 2026/27, to include the following items: 

 Bury £1.701m share of the additional £500m added to the Social Care Grant 

to bolster social care budgets and £22k increase in the Services Grant, 

announced in the final 2024/25 Local Government Finance Settlement. 

 £444k full year effect of increasing fees and charges following a further 

review of our charges. 

 

3. To present to members the updated Net Budget for 2024/25. 

 

4. To inform members of the final reserves position as at 31 March 2024. 

 

5. To present to members the 2023/24 capital outturn position and request 

approval to move the slippage into 2024/25. 

 

6. To present an update to members on the Finance Improvement Plan 

 

7. To set out the work plan to close the budget gap, to be reported at September 

Cabinet in the MTFF refresh. 

 

Recommendation(s) 

 

8. Cabinet is asked to: 

 

 Note the 2023/24 revenue outturn position of a £6.607m overspend (3.47%) 

against a net budget of £190.274m. 

 

 Approve the updates to the Medium-Term Financial Forecast (MTFF) for the 

additional £1.701m Social Care Grant, £22k increase in the Services Grant 

and an increase to the fees and charges as set in section 21 and Appendix 

A totalling £444k. 

Classification: 

Open 

Decision Type: 

Non-Key 

Page 59 Agenda Item 8



 

 Note the updated budget gap of £27.918m, a reduction of £2.167m on the 

£30.085m budget gap reported at the Budget Council Meeting in February 

2024. 

 

 Note the updated Net Revenue Budget of £224.480m and £1.982m 

reduction in the use of reserves, from £15.131m to £13.149m. 

 

 Note the General Fund and Earmarked Reserves balance at 31 March 2024 

of £104.389m. 

 

 Note the overall 2023/24 capital programme outturn position of £52.944m, 

70% compared to the overall 2023/24 capital programme budget of 

£75.475m. 

 

 Approve the in-year capital slippage of £23.419m is transferred into 

2024/25. 

 

 Note the Finance Improvement Plan update. 

 

 Note the work plan to close the £27.918m budget gap. 

 

9. Council is asked to: 

 

 Approve the increase to the fees and charges as set in section 21 and 

Appendix 1 totalling £444k. 

 

 Note the updated Net Revenue Budget of £224.480m and £1.982m 

reduction in the use of reserves, from £15.131m to £13.149m. 

 

Reasons for recommendation(s) 

10. To note the final financial position for 2023/24 subject to external audit. 

 

11. To update members on the Councils budgetary position and set out the work 

plan to close the budget gap. 

 

Alternative options considered and rejected 

12. Not increase fees and charges. 

_________________________________________________________ 

Report Author and Contact Details: 

Name:   Neil Kissock 
Position:  Director of Finance 
Department:  Corporate Core Department 
E-mail:  N.Kissock@bury.gov.uk 

Page 60

mailto:N.Kissock@bury.gov.uk


________________________________________________________________ 

Background 

2023/24 Revenue Outturn 

13. The 2023/24 general fund revenue outturn position was an overspend of 
£6.607m (subject to audit) which represents a variance of 3.47% compared to 
the overall revenue budget of £190.274m. 

 

2023-24 Revenue Outturn 
Revised  
Budget  

£m 

Actual  
£m 

Actual to Budget 
 Variance  

£m 

Health and Adult Care £79.135 £79.706 £0.571 

Children & Young People £40.249 £50.754 £10.505 

Corporate Core Services £26.364 £25.715 (£0.649) 

Non-Service Specific £28.495 £23.711 (£4.784) 

Business, Growth & Infrastructure £1.009 £1.473 £0.464 

Operations  £15.101 £16.227 £1.125 

Housing General Fund (£0.079) (£0.704) (£0.625) 

Directorate Total £190.274 £196.881 £6.607 
Funding (£190.274) (£190.274) £0 

GENERAL FUND £0 £6.607 £6.607 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 61



14. The quarterly forecast positions and the actual outturn position can be seen in 
the table below: 

2023-24 Revenue Outturn 

Revised  
Quarter 

1 
Quarter 

2 
Quarter 

3 
Actual 

Budget  Variance Variance Variance Variance 

£m £m £m £m £m 

Health and Adult Care £79.135 £3.216 £1.145 £0.855 £0.571 

Children & Young People £40.249 £9.361 £10.085 £11.279 £10.505 

Corporate Core Services  £26.364 £0.167 £0.044 £0.273 (£0.649) 

Non-Service Specific £28.495 (£2.257) (£3.200) (£4.797) (£4.784) 

Business, Growth & Infrastructure £1.009 £0.040 £0.082 £0.048 £0.464 

Operations £15.101 £2.740 £1.640 £1.803 £1.125 

Housing General Fund (£0.079) £0.000 £0.000 £0.000 (£0.625) 

Directorate Total £190.274 £13.266 £9.796 £9.462 £6.607 

Funding (£190.274) £0.000 £0.000 £0.000 £0.000 

GENERAL FUND £0.000 £13.266 £9.796 £9.462 £6.607 

 

 

 

 

£0.000

£5.000

£10.000

£15.000

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Actual

Quarterly Forecast  Variance to Outturn Variance 

Directorate Total

-£6.000

-£4.000

-£2.000

£0.000

£2.000

£4.000

£6.000

£8.000

£10.000

£12.000

£14.000

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Actual

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

 £
m

Quarter

Quarterly Forecast Variance to Outturn Variance by 
Department

Health and Adult Care

Children & Young People

Corporate Core Services

Non-Service Specific

Business, Growth & Infrastructure

Operations

Housing General Fund

Page 62



15. Details of the significant variances include: 

Health and Adult Care:  

 The Care in the Community budget overspent by £1.102m, due to: 

o An increase in demand for Home Care packages as a result of supporting 

hospital discharges into home care settings.  

o New ‘in year demand’ demand or increases to existing care packages. 

o Legacy demand pressures because of Covid Hospital Discharge policy 

o In year savings shortfall. 

 The Commissioning & Procurement budget overspent by £371k, due to: 

o A £600k overspend on the Persona budget regarding additional 

Supported Living staffing costs and savings slippage. 

o A £160k underspend due to vacant posts within the Community 

Commissioning Team. 

o A £110k permanent contractual savings within the Neighbourhood 

Housing Support budgets. 

o A £68k underspend due to Carers grant account closures. 

 The Adult Social Care Operations budget underspent by £315k, the main 

driver of the £315k underspend are staffing vacancies within the Assessment 

and Care Management, Integrated Neighbourhood Team (INT), Reviewing 

Team and Community Mental Health Team staffing budgets. 

 The Public Health budget underspent by £428k, due to: 

o Staffing Budget underspend - £45k. 

o NHS Health Check Contract Saving - £50k. 

o Domestic Violence Contract saving - £90k. 

o Reduction in Activity of Out of Borough Sexual health Services - £193k. 

o Reduction in Substance Misuse prescribing costs - £50k. 

 

Children and Young People: 

 Children's residential placements including Children with disabilities 

overspent by £5.134m, due to increasing placement costs from private 

providers which continues to be an issue. 

 The safeguarding service overspent by £1.493m, due to high agency costs, 

increased costs for Non-Looked After (NLA) support packages and legal 

charges. 

 Home to School Transport overspent by £1.664m, due to increase in 

demand alongside inflationary costs. 

 Inclusion and Partnerships overspent by £1.387m, with The Short Breaks 

service being the largest contributing area to this adverse variance which in 

part is due to the unachieved previously approved savings target of £200k 

and short breaks costs of £300k previously funded through DSG. An 

increase in demand and costs for Personal budgets is also contributing to 

the overall overspend. 

 

Page 63



Corporate Core Services: 

 People and Inclusion service underspent by £314k, due to staffing 

underspends and ringfenced funding for specific posts and reduced running 

costs within business support. 

 Finance underspent by £241k, due to net income from the Collection Fund 

higher than forecast in relation to summons costs income, cost of collection. 

£482k.  This is offset by an overspend in relation to the statutory externa l 

audit fee of £181k and an overspend for the additional resources to support 

the finance improvement agenda and additional work to support children’s 

services £91k. 

 

Non-Service Specific: 

 Cost of borrowing was underspent by £3.402m due to less borrowing being 

undertaken through the re-phasing and slippage on the capital programme, 

increase in investment income due to high interest rates. 

 Greater Manchester Waste Disposal levy was underspent by £1.397m due 

to the additional return of the waste levy rebate. 

 

Business Growth and Infrastructure: 

 The main reasons for the overspend were lower than budgeted incomes in 

Development Management (Planning), Building Control and the two 

Shopping Centres (Longfield in Prestwich and Mill Gate in Bury). 

 

Operations: 

 The main driver of the directorate overspend relates to £1.337m overspend 

on energy costs due to high prices/inflation that has led to overspends in the 

high-volume areas of Leisure and Highways within the Operations 

Department. 

 

16. A significant amount of the overspend is within Children and Young People, 

reporting a £10.505m overspend. The budget for 2024/25 has been increased 

to account for these pressures however there remains a risk that this increase 

may be insufficient by c.£1.5m due to an increase in placement numbers from 

115 to 121. This assumes placements number remain at 115 through the 

2024/25 year; any increase or decrease would impact the forecast position. 

 

17. The pressures within other directorates have also been accounted for in the 

2024/25 budget however there are some risks relating to income. Work is 

ongoing to review the budgets built in with the outturn information now available 

to assess if there any areas of opportunity to reduce the budgets.  This will be 

addressed and reported as part of the Quarter 1 suite of reports to September 

Cabinet.  

Page 64



2024-25 to 2026-27 MTFF 

 

18. The budget report presented to Budget Council on 21 February 2024 included 

the funding grants totalling £28.127m, taken from the Provisional 2024/25 Local 

Government Finance Settlement (LGFS) announced on 18 December 2023. 

 

19. On 5 February 2024 the government announced the Final 2024/25 Local 

Government Settlement, for Bury this included an additional £1.701m of Social 

Care Grant allocation and an increase of £22k to the Services Grant.   

Funding Grants 2023/24 

FEB 2024 

2024/25 

JULY 2024 

2024/25 

£m £m £m 

Improved Better Care Fund £7.628 £7.628 £7.628 

Social Care Grant £12.635 £14.894 £16.595 

ASC Market Sustainability and Improvement Fund £3.155 £3.573 £3.573 

ASC Discharge Fund £1.069 £1.783 £1.783 

Social Care Grants £0 £0 £0 

New Homes Bonus £0.053 £0.020 £0.020 

Services Grant £1.456 £0.229 £0.251 

Funding Guarantee £0 £0 £0 

Funding Grants £25.996 £28.127 £29.850 

Year % Change   8.20% 14.83% 

 

20. As part of the continuing work to close the budget gap, a further review of fees 

and charges has been undertaken, subject to Council approval, it is proposed 

to uplift the fees and charges listed in appendix A. 

  

21. The fees and charges increases are forecast to generate an additional £444k 

income, split part-year with £259k in 2024/25 and £185k in 2025/26. 

 

22. The 2024/25 to 2026/27 MTFF budget gap presented to Budget Council on 21 

February 2024 was £30.085m, including the £1.723m increase in funding 

grants that were announced too late to incorporate in February budget papers 

and the proposed increase of £444k in fees and charges, reduces the budget 

gap by £2.167m to £27.918m as shown in the table below. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 65



Updated MTFF Summary 

JULY 2024 

2024/25 
(£000s) 

2025/26 
(£000s) 

2026/27 
(£000s) 

        

Budget Gap at February 2024 £15.131 £10.627 £4.327 

Increase in Fees and Charges  (£0.259) (£0.185) £0.000 

Additional Social Care Grant Funding (£1.701) £0.000 £0.000 

Increase in the Services Grant (£0.022) £0.000 £0.000 

ANNUAL INCREMENTAL BUDGET GAP £13.149 £10.442 £4.327 

CUMULATIVE BUDGET GAP £13.149 £23.591 £27.918 

 

 

 

2024/25 Budget 

 

23. The budget report presented to Budget Council on 21 February 2024 set out 

the Council’s budget requirement for the 2024/25 financial year and provided 

details on the Council’s reserves position.  This process is in accordance with 

statutory requirements and proper accounting practices. 

 

24. Council approved a net revenue budget of £209.608m for 2024/25, which 

included an approved use of reserves of £15.131m held within the Non-Service 

Specific Directorate, to balance the revenue budget. 

 

25. It is proposed that the in-year use of reserves of £15.131m to balance the 

budget, is re-presented from Non-Service Specific to below funding. This re-

presentation not only shows the overall net revenue budget position of 

£224.739m but each directorate’s net revenue budget position, to more 

accurately reflect the true net revenue budget to deliver the Council services. 

 

26. The table below shows this new re-presentation of the general fund budget that 

will be used to report against throughout the year.  

 The Feb 2024 column shows the re-presentation of the approved budget. 

 The July 2024 updates the approved budget with the items outlined in section 

22 above, of: 

o £4k additional fees and charges income in Corporate Core Services. 

o £255k additional fees and charges income in Operations. 

o £259k reduction in the net revenue budget, from £224.739m to £224.480m 

o £1.723m increase in Government Funding Grants. 

o £1.982m reduction in the use of reserves from £15.131m to £13.149m. 

 

 

 

Page 66



2024/25 Updated Budget 
FEB 2024  
2024/25 

£m 

JULY 2024  
2024/25 

£m 

      

Directorate:     

Health and Adult Care £87.215 £87.215 

Children & Young People £58.183 £58.183 

Corporate Core Services £28.455 £28.451 

Non-Service Specific £31.097 £31.097 

Business, Growth & Infrastructure £1.225 £1.225 

Operations £18.643 £18.388 

Housing General Fund (£0.079) (£0.079) 

NET REVENUE BUDGET £224.739 £224.480 

Funding:     

Council Tax (£110.198) (£110.198) 

Business Rates (£71.282) (£71.282) 

Government Funding Grants  (£28.128) (£29.851) 

FUNDING (£209.608) (£211.331) 

Use of Reserves     

Budget Stabilisation Reserve (£15.131) (£13.149) 

USE OF RESERVES (£15.131) (£13.149) 

BALANCED BUDGET £0 £0 

 

 

Reserves 

27. In accordance with statutory regulations and CIPFA Guidance, the levels of 

balances and reserves are reviewed during the budget process to ensure that 

they are currently sufficient, and that they will remain adequate over the 

medium-term. 

 

28. The table below shows the forecast year-end balance on reserves from the 

February 2024 budget report compared to the actual year-end balance on 

reserves in the unaudited 2023/24 statement of accounts. 

 

29. Overall, the position on general fund and earmarked reserves improved by 

£3.878m, but when excluding the general fund balance and other statute & ring-

fenced reserves, the position improved by £5.883m, significant variations 

include:  

 Collection Fund: improvement on the budgeted collection fund position and 

receipts of additional government funding grants. 

 Budget Stabilisation: improvement on the 2023/24 forecast outturn position. 

 

 

 

Page 67



General Fund Reserves 

FEB 2024  

Forecast  
Balance at  

31 March 

2024 

Year-End  

Actual  
Balance at  

31 March 

2024 

Variance 

£m £m £m 

General Fund (£10.000) (£10.000) £0.000 

Management of Financial Risk - Corporate (£4.420) (£4.010) £0.410 

Management of Financial Risk - Directorate (£0.164) (£0.054) £0.110 

Investment Funds (£0.816) (£1.518) (£0.702) 

COVID-19 Related Grants (£1.955) (£1.872) £0.083 

Earmarked External Funding (£12.189) (£11.761) £0.428 

Levies £0.000 (£0.679) (£0.679) 

Collection Fund (£4.629) (£7.194) (£2.565) 

Budget Stabilisation (£45.297) (£47.432) (£2.135) 

Insurance (£3.914) (£4.664) (£0.750) 

DSG Deficit (£6.000) (£6.000) £0.000 

Earmarked Balances Sub-Total (£79.384) (£85.184) (£5.800) 

Schools Reserves (£5.169) (£3.043) £2.126 

Section 106 Commuted Sums (£5.958) (£6.162) (£0.204) 

Total General Fund Reserves (£100.511) (£104.389) (£3.878) 

        

Projected GF Reserves Balance (£100.511) (£104.389) (£3.878) 

General Fund (£10.000) (£10.000) £0.000 

COVID-19 Grants (£1.955) (£1.872) £0.083 

Schools Reserves  (£5.169) (£3.043) £2.126 

Section 106 Commuted Sums (£5.958) (£6.162) (£0.204) 

GF Reserves Balance excluding Statute  

& Ring-Fenced Reserves 
(£77.429) (£83.312) (£5.883) 

 

 

30. At February 2024 Budget Council, it was assumed £15.131m of reserves would 

be required in 2024/25 to enable the Council to achieve a balanced budget 

whilst savings are being realised, this has been updated to £13.149m as per 

section 26.  

 

31. Although, the Secretary of State in his Written Ministerial Statement to 

parliament on 5 February 2024 in presenting the Final 2024/25 Local 

Government Finance Settlement, 

 

“asks authorities to continue to consider how they can use their reserves to 

maintain services over this and the next financial year, recognising that not all 

reserves can be reallocated, and that the ability to meet spending pressures 

from reserves will vary between authorities.” 

 

The continuing use of reserves to balance the budget presents an un-

sustainable position, as such the Council has developed a work plan, detailed 

later in the report, to reduce the reliance on the use of reserves and to stabilise 

the Council’s finances over the medium-term. 

 

 

Page 68



2023/24 Capital Outturn 

32. The Capital Programme is set on a three-year rolling basis and the programme 

for 2023/2024 to 2025/2026 was approved by Budget Council in February 2023, 

as follows: 

 

2023/24 £127.198m 
2024/25 £73.500m 

2025/26 £28.630m 
 

33. At the 12 July 2023 Cabinet meeting, a further £17.390m of slippage from 

2022/23 was added to the 2023/24 programme, to increase the 2023/24 Capital 

Programme to £144.588m. 

 

34. Throughout the year, project managers have continued to review their 

respective capital schemes and have provided scheme updates and re-phased 

schemes into future years of the Capital Programme to match the anticipated 

timing of spend, as a result of more up to date information becoming available.  

 

35. As a result of the in-year reviews, the 2023/24 Capital Programme reduced by 

£69.113m, from £144.588m to £75.475m, which included the inception of 

£18.007m in relation to grant awards (schools and highways) and the re-

phasing of £87.120m into future years (£78.497m into 2024-25 and £8.623m 

into 2025-26). 

  

36. The table below shows the 2023/24 Capital Programme outturn position of 

£52.944m (subject to audit), that equals 70% of the revised capital programme 

total of £75.475m. The main variances of the £22.531m underspend include: 

 £6.654m Schools grant allocations. 

 £5.016m Radcliffe Regeneration Levelling-Up scheme. 

 £2.794m HRA Capital Programme. 

 £2.343m Highways Planned Maintenance Programme. 

 £2.324m Streets for All Bury Programme. 

 £967k Vehicle Replacement Strategy. 

 £555k Springwater Park scheme. 

 

37. It is proposed that the slippage of £23.419m on schemes is carried forward into 

the 2024/25 Capital Programme, that will increase the 2024-25 Capital 

Programme from £146.928m approved at February 2024 Budget Council to 

£170.347m, which includes an overall borrowing requirement of £47.553m. 

  

 

 

 

Page 69



2023/24 CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
 2023/24 

Revised  
Programme 

Actual  
Spend  

at 
 Outturn 

Actual  
Spend  

at 
 Outturn 

 (Under) 

/ Over  
spend  

at 

Outturn 

Proposed 

Slippage 

to 

2024/25  

  £m £m % £m £m 

            

Capital Expenditure by Theme           
Regeneration and Economic Growth £11.565 £6.046 52% £0.000 £5.260 
Place Shaping/Growth £1.326 £0.622 47% £0.000 £0.950 
Sports and Leisure £4.081 £3.482 85% (£0.050) £0.573 
Operational Fleet £3.935 £2.936 75% (£0.002) £0.997 
ICT and Digital £0.781 £1.598 204% £0.871 £0.055 
Highways £17.388 £12.201 70% £0.000 £5.176 
Children and Young People £12.011 £5.357 45% (£0.000) £6.654 
Estate Management - Investment 

Estate £0.070 £0.000 0% £0.000 £0.070 

Estate Management - Corporate 

Landlord £2.642 £1.766 67% £0.070 £0.946 

Older People and Disabled Facilities 

Grant £1.676 £2.049 122% £0.000 (£0.373) 

Housing GF £0.438 £0.457 104% £0.000 £0.190 
Housing HRA £19.314 £16.311 84% £0.000 £2.794 
Climate Change £0.247 £0.119 48% £0.000 £0.128 
TOTAL EXPENDITURE £75.475 £52.944 70% £0.889 £23.419 

            
Financing the Capital 
Programme            

Prudential Borrowing £17.623 £14.912 85% £0.889 £3.600 
External Funding £36.038 £22.295 62% £0.000 £13.743 
Capital Receipts £6.651 £2.649 40% £0.000 £4.002 
General Fund RCCO £1.566 £0.488 31% £0.000 £1.078 
Housing Revenue Account 

DRF/MRR £13.597 £12.600 93% £0.000 £0.997 

TOTAL FINANCING £75.475 £52.944 70% £0.889 £23.419 

 

 

Finance Improvement Plan 

38. In 2023 the Council began a voluntarily commissioned finance improvement 

journey, independent advice was sought from CIPFA; an Improvement Board 

was established, and an experienced interim S151 Officer was engaged, to 

determine and lead a holistic programme of improvement. 

 

39. A Peer Review by the LGA in December 2024 validated the improvement work 

to date and confirmed that work so far and the wider improvements proposed 

had the potential to stabilise the council’s position. 

 

40. The programme of ongoing work required was agreed to include systems, 

processes, policy/guidance and training. Specific deliverables for the next 

financial year include: 

 Completing the work to balance the 2024/25 budget. 

 A fundamental update of the council’s ledger, via the upgrade and cloud 

migration of Unit 4. 

Page 70



 Conclusion of legacy accounting procedures in particular internal recharges . 

 Strengthening the governance of the capital programme. 

 Developing the skills and resources available for both finance business 

partners and departmental budget holders. 

 Producing finance procedure rules. 

 

41. Further detail on the finance improvement journey is provided in Appendix 2 

 

 

2024/25 In-year Workplan 

42. Workplan for the next MTFS update report: 

 Undertake Star Chamber for each Directorate to review:  

o All budget headings & identification of recurring under/overspends based 

on the 2023/24 outturn position.  

o Review of establishment costing, structures and pay awards assumptions. 

o Review contracts and Annual Price Increases (APIs) uplifts. 

 Rationalisation of the chart of accounts to include: 

o The identification of headings where budgets can be centralised & 

recharges removed. 

o To introduce a central support service recharging model. 

 Refresh of the sales, fees and charges register. 

 Updating of the Collection Fund position, to include a review of collection 

rates, debt recovery and taxbase assumptions. 

 Continuing the review of the Capital Programme with project managers to 

de-clutter/rationalise & re-phase the programme and update the cost of 

borrowing assumptions.  

 Develop a medium-term savings plan. 

 Sensitivity and scenarios analysis modelling. 

 

43. As stated in section 17 above, an MTFF update will be reported as part of the 

Quarter 1 suite of reports to September Cabinet. 

 

_________________________________________________________ 

Links with the Corporate Priorities: 

44. Financial management is a key part of the council’s overall governance and 

control arrangements and the close monitoring of agreed income and 

expenditure; revised forecasts of future budget pressures and opportunities ; 

and regular reporting of these issues underpin the council’s three clear 

corporate priorities as set out in the Let’s Do It Strategy that will deliver financial 

sustainability for the Council.  

 

 

Page 71



_________________________________________________________ 

Equality Impact and Considerations: 

45. Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the ‘general duty’ on public 

authorities is set out as follows:  

A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to 

the need to: 

a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 

conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;  

b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it.  

 

46. The public sector equality duty (specific duty) requires us to consider how we 

can positively contribute to the advancement of equality and good relations and 

demonstrate that we are paying ‘due regard’ in our decision making in the 

design of policies and in the delivery of services. 

 

47. Included within this report are proposed increases to fees and charges as 

identified in section 21 and Appendix 1, an Equality Impact Assessment has 

been produced (link below). 

 
EqIA - Cabinet Report MTFS Update June 2025.docx 

 

Environmental Impact and Considerations: 

48. This is a finance update report as such there are no environmental impacts 

associated with this report. 

 

 

Assessment and Mitigation of Risk: 

 

Risk / opportunity  Mitigation  

The Council has insufficient funds to support 

its expenditure. 

Regular reporting and tight budgetary 

control by budget holders support the 
Council in managing the overall financial 

risks and financial planning for the 
Council.  

 

 

Page 72

https://burygovuk-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/m_hone_bury_gov_uk/EdoF39n4CTRKksZIWJBIES4BVI_SCvLY5VSTHI74sT3yXw


_________________________________________________________ 

Legal Implications: 

49. Members are asked to make two recommendations to Council. These 

recommendations relate to decisions which are reserved to Council under the 

Councils constitution, namely amendments to the Council’s financial revenue 

budget and capital expenditure programme. If Members are minded to agree 

to an increase in fees and charges, the Monitoring Officer and S151 officer 

will review the schedule and ensure all relevant consultations will be carried 

out prior to any increases being implemented.    

 

Financial Implications: 

50. The financial implications are included within the Report.  

 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1: Fees and Charges 

Appendix 2: Finance Improvement Plan 

 

Background papers: 

Please list any background documents to this report and include a hyperlink where possible. 

The Council's Revenue Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan 

 

Please include a glossary of terms, abbreviations and acronyms used in this 
report.  

  

Term Meaning 

MTFF Medium Term Financial Forecast 

LGFS Local Government Finance Settlement  

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy 

 

Page 73

https://councildecisions.bury.gov.uk/documents/s38605/MTFP%20and%20Revenue%20Budget.pdf


Appendix 1: Fees and Charges 

 

Directorate Service Fees & Charge Description 
2024-25  
Budget 

Uplift 
Additional  

Income 
2024-25 2025-26 

                

Corporate Core Services  Legal Services Administration Charges (£93,800) 6.70% (£6,000) (£4,000) (£2,000) 

                

Operations Arts & Museums Museum & Tourist Information Centre Fees  (£61,900) 6.11% (£4,000) (£2,000) (£2,000) 

Operations Commercial Services Markets Fees (£2,564,400) 4.98% (£128,000) (£75,000) (£53,000) 

Operations Engineers Traffic Management Fees (£665,000) 3.66% (£24,000) (£14,000) (£10,000) 

Operations Facilities Management Administration Property Rents  (£370,800) 5.77% (£21,000) (£12,000) (£9,000) 

Operations Health & Environmental Protection Environmental Services (Public Protection) Fees (£36,400) 1.40% (£1,000) (£1,000) £0 

Operations Health & Environmental Protection Licensing (£451,600) 6.34% (£29,000) (£17,000) (£12,000) 

Operations Health & Environmental Protection Private Rental Sector Enforcement Fees  (£57,300) 11.50% (£7,000) (£4,000) (£3,000) 

Operations Health & Environmental Protection Trading Standards Fees (£24,600) 4.80% (£1,000) (£1,000) £0 

Operations Street Scene Maintenance Pest Control Fees (£196,100) 5.46% (£11,000) (£6,000) (£5,000) 

Operations Waste, Transport & Stores Transport Fees (£122,200) 1.99% (£2,000) (£1,000) (£1,000) 

Operations Waste, Transport & Stores Waste Fees (£1,107,400) 3.62% (£40,000) (£23,000) (£17,000) 

Operations Wellness Bereavement Services Fees (£487,900) 5.79% (£28,000) (£16,000) (£12,000) 

Operations Wellness Leisure Facilities Fees (£2,564,200) 5.40% (£138,000) (£81,000) (£57,000) 

Operations Wellness Libraries & Archives Fees (£33,500) 6.18% (£2,000) (£1,000) (£1,000) 

Operations Wellness Parks Fees (£28,900) 5.23% (£2,000) (£1,000) (£1,000) 

                

TOTAL     (£8,866,000) 5.01% (£444,000) (£259,000) (£185,000) 

 

 

P
age 74



Appendix 2: Finance Improvement Plan 

In 2023 the Council began a voluntarily commissioned finance improvement 

journey.  The action was taken because: 

 A significant investment was required in children’s social services to mitigate years 
of under investment which had resulted in an inadequate judgement of social care 

services in 2021. An uplift of over 34% on the departmental budget (34%) was 
arranged, which threatened to destabilise the rest of the council’s budget. 

 A series of independent advisors highlighted the weakness of the finance function 
itself and budget management generally. 

 An in-year overspend of over £10m was forecast due partly because of the impact 

of the uplift required to the children’s services’ budget but also delays in achieving 
some savings targets and the impact of inflation running at c11% during the year, 

which had uplifted the majority of the council’s operating costs. 
 

Independent advice was sought from CIPFA; an Improvement Board was established 

and an experienced interim S151 Officer was engaged, to determine and lead a 

holistic programme of improvement. Under the leadership of this team: 

 The Treasury strategy has been updated to maximise the return on counci l 
investments including realising some immediate savings. 

 Every departmental budget has been reviewed, with demand adjustments made 
where necessary. 

 The reserves strategy has been updated and c.£70m of one-off resources identified 
to support the revenue budget if necessary. With the benefit of this stability a three -
year MTFS was updated and the 2024/25 budget set. 

 Advisors have been engaged to upgrade Unit 4 and all associated processes. 

 A review of procurement processes has begun including remapping the purchase 

to pay process and clarifying contract procedure rules. The work will now interface 
with the development of finance procedure rules, as described below. 

 The job of S151 has been redesigned to assimilate ethe finance function with the 
Department of Corporate Core services to ensure integrated corporate strategy 

through the leadership of a single Executive Director. The S151 post has been 
redesignated at Director level, reporting operationally to the ED for the Corporate 
Core and substantively to the CEO in order to significantly strengthen leadership 

oversight.  A new substantive S151, Neil Kissock, took up post on 1 July. 
 

A Peer Review by the LGA in December 2024 validated the improvement work to date 

and confirmed that work so far and the wider improvements proposed had the potential 

to stabilise the council’s position.  The programme of ongoing work required was 

agreed to include systems, processes, policy/guidance and training. Specific 

deliverables for the next financial year include: 

 Completing the work to balance the 2024/25 budget. 

 A fundamental update of the council’s ledger, via the upgrade and cloud migration 

of Unit 4. 

 Conclusion of legacy accounting procedures in particular internal recharges. 

 Strengthening the governance of the capital programme. 

Page 75



 Developing the skills and resources available for both finance business partners 
and departmental budget holders. 

 Producing finance procedure rules. 
 

The Finance Improvement Board will be retained to oversee the ongoing work 

described above, with a new Chair to be identified by the new S151 who may also 

support their professional development as part of their induction to the council. 

 

Page 76



Overview and Scrutiny  
Items 

Officer / Elected Member 

Meeting date: 

24-Jul-24 

         
Corporate Plan and Q4 Report                              

Corporate Parenting Champion     
Finance Update                                                                

Forward Plan Setting                                        

 
Cllr Thorpe 

03-Sep-24 

Q1 Finance Position                                             

Atom Valley Update                                         
Housing Update 

Cllr Thorpe 

Cllr O’Brien 
Cllr Cummins 
 

26-Nov-24 
CSP Refresh (and routine update to Scrutiny)  Cllr Walmsley 

Q 1 and Q2 Performance Report Cllr Thorpe 

06-Feb-25 Budget Papers Cllr Thorpe 

11-Mar-25 Housing and Homelessness Update Full Cllr Cummins 

 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES
	7 Year End/Quarter Four Corporate Plan Performance Report 2023/24 and submission of the productivity plan
	Appendix - Productivity Plan v2

	8 Budget Update Report
	9 Forward Planner

